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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report covers the performance of Namibia Asset Management Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (NAM; or the Company; 
or the Group) for the period under review and how we strive to create long-term value for all stakeholders.

A B O U T  T H I S  R E P O R T   /   5

While the report focuses on the requirements of shareholders, 
all material stakeholders are considered, including our clients, 
without whom we have no business; our employees, who play a 
critical role in our delivery of long-term investment performance 
and client service; and the communities in which we operate.

This report has been compiled, where applicable, in compliance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the 
Companies Act of Namibia, No. 28 of 2004, and the Listings 
Requirements of the Namibia Stock Exchange (NSX).

The content of the report is additionally guided by the NamCode 
on Corporate Governance.  

We have also commenced our journey to align with the 
International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) Integrated 
Reporting (<IR>) Framework, and we believe that over time we will 
become fully compliant with these recommended requirements.

DIRECTORS’ APPROVAL

The Board of Directors acknowledges responsibility for ensuring 
the integrity of this report. The directors have applied their 
collective minds and agree that all aspects covered in the 
preparation and presentation of this report are deemed to be 
material to the business in creating value for its stakeholders 
and that performance has been fairly presented. The content of 
this report has, accordingly, been approved for the year ended 
30 September 2020.

The directors have reviewed the financial statements and 
the content of this report and are satisfied that the Group 
has adequate resources, despite the impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic, to continue operating for the foreseeable future. For 
this reason, the financial statements have been prepared on the 
going concern basis. Due to the size and nature of NAM, we 
compile a concise Integrated Annual Report and do not issue a 
summarised Integrated Annual Report. 

Our full Annual Financial Statements start on page 35. 
Additionally, this report includes the notice of Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) and Proxy Form.

All information is reported for the year ended 30 September 2020, 
unless otherwise indicated.

The Board approved the Integrated Annual Report on 14 
December 2020.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements based on 
underlying uncertainties. The Group cannot guarantee that any 
forward-looking statement will materialise. Accordingly, readers 
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these statements. 
If new information becomes available due to future events or 
other reasons, the Group disclaims any intention and assumes 
no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements.

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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ABOUT NAMIBIA ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NAM was founded in response to a national call for Namibians 
to take leadership in one of the most critical areas of economic 
development, namely the financial services sector. We are an 
asset management company and the only asset manager listed 
on the NSX. NAM currently manages funds on behalf of various 
individual and institutional investors of more than N$17 billion.

COMPANY INFORMATION

Namibia Asset Management (Proprietary) Limited was founded 
in April 1996 as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Namibian 
Harvest Investments Limited (NHI) to provide independent 
asset management services to institutional and retail investors. 
NHI was a broadly diversified financial services group that was 
successfully listed on the NSX in July 1998. After ten years in 
existence, the NHI Board of directors decided to refocus the 
business on asset management only. Thus all the non-core 
businesses have been closed.

With effect from 29 May 2006, NHI’s name was changed to 
Namibia Asset Management Limited to reflect the amended 
structure of the company.

NAM is the largest independent Namibian-owned asset 
management company with extensive experience in the local, 
regional and international investment arena. It has a reputation for 
strong, consistent investment performance and high service levels.

CORONATION FUND MANAGERS

The Group has enjoyed a mutually beneficial strategic business 
alliance with Coronation Fund Managers (Coronation) since 
1996.

Coronation embraces Namibianisation by providing investment 
management expertise, on-site training of Namibian investment 

professionals and administrative employees in South Africa, and 
operational support systems to the Group.

Coronation has a 40.05% shareholding in NAM.

OUR VISION

Our vision is to deliver investment excellence and exceptional 
service to our clients.

OUR STRATEGY

A relentless commitment to the long term is the defining 
characteristic of the Group. Our strategy is to remain singularly 
focused on fund management; we do this by applying our 
insight and experience to generate consistent long-term 
performance across markets for all our clients. This is a key 
competitive advantage in our investment philosophy and is 
deeply embedded in the way we run our business. We operate 
in a highly competitive industry and remain committed to 
delivering on our promise to clients.

We pursue a return objective of generating alpha (market out-
performance on client mandates) for our clients. We are not 
asset gatherers.

In the delivery of long-term investment performance, our com-
mitment to placing clients at the centre of all decision-making 
is encapsulated as follows: 

• We strive to always put our clients first 
• We have an unwavering commitment to the long term 
• We focus on producing top performance over all meaningful 

periods 
• We are uncompromising about ethics

NAM IS A PURE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT BUSINESS PROVIDING BOTH INDIVIDUAL AND INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS WITH A PLATFORM TO BUILD FINANCIAL WEALTH.

OUR CULTURE

We are proud of our culture.  As an asset management business 
we believe our people are our greatest asset. We have developed 
a culture of teamwork, performance, excellence, and an 
entrepreneurial flair. These are ingrained in our DNA. 

We are a meritocracy and believe that active managers require 
a strong culture of performance and excellence. Ownership is a 
very important aspect of our culture. Currently our employees 
own approximately 24% of the business either directly or via 
various structures supporting this purpose.

OUR COMMITMENT TO OUR CLIENTS 

We recognise that the sustainability of our business lies in our 
ability to produce superior long-term investment performance, 
to provide client service excellence, to ensure client and staff 
retention and to maintain our licence to operate.

At the heart of our philosophy and behaviour is our commitment 
to clients. We are conscious that the trust placed by clients in 
us is not a given or a right, but that it has been hard earned over 
time, year after year, and can easily be lost.

Our client engagements are underpinned by the following 
com mitments:
• Always put clients first
• Always act with integrity
• Be passionate
• Be open to new ideas
• Communicate
• Be excellent

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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Institutional clients

Our institutional strategies cover all asset classes across 
a number of geographies in both segregated and pooled 
mandates.

We are one of the largest managers of institutional assets in 
Namibia. Our clients include pension and provident funds, 
medical schemes, major banking and insurance groups, as 
well as other asset managers, through their multi-manager 
offerings. Distribution is conducted primarily through 
investment consultants, multi-managers and umbrella funds. 

Personal investment clients

We offer a comprehensive range of investments, including 
domestic and international funds. Access to the various funds 
are directly available from our offices in Windhoek. We also 
distribute through the non-affiliated channels of discretionary 
managers, independent financial advisers, and third-party 
linked investment service providers.

We focus solely on investment management; we are not 
involved in other areas of the value chain, such as investment 
platform administration and the provision of financial advice.

OUR UNIT TRUST FLAGSHIP FUNDS ARE DEPICTED BELOW:

RE
TU

RN

RISK

LONG-TERM GROWTH FUNDS
NAM CORONATION OPTIMUM GROWTH

NAM CORONATION BALANCED PLUS

Multi-asset (Invest in different asset 
classes, e.g. shares, bonds and listed 
property)

NAM CORONATION CAPITAL PLUS

NAM CORONATION BALANCED DEFENSIVE

INCOME AND GROWTH FUNDS
Multi-asset (Invest in different asset 
classes, e.g. shares, bonds and listed 
property)

NAM CORONATION STRATEGIC INCOMEInvest in income generation instruments
INCOME FUNDS

NAM CORONATION MONEY MARKET FUND

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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OUR PEOPLE

The smarter and more diverse we are as a business, the greater 
our competitive advantage. Our aim is to attract the best talent, 
and to build and retain an exceptional team of highly motivated 
and productive people.

Transformation and the creation of sustainable economic 
empowerment of previously disadvantaged and local businesses 
is an integral part of the Group’s strategy. Transformation is 
a business imperative which makes practical business sense, 
the benefits of which extend to clients, partners, shareholders, 
employees and the Namibian economy.

The Group is a voluntary signatory to the Namibia Financial 
Services Charter (NFSC). In line with the spirit of this Charter 
we are committed to a practical and sustainable process for 
promoting economic growth through Namibianisation and 
empowerment of previously disadvantaged Namibians. We 
have made significant strides in this regard and our people have 
approximately 24% interest in the Group via direct and indirect 
shareholding structures.

OUR COMMUNITIES 

We have developed a formal Corporate Social Investment (CSI) 
policy. Its overarching objective is to contribute and assist 
with capacity building through the development of skills in the 
financial services industry. This focused approach ensures that 
we make a tangible impact, whether internally or externally. 

Our CSI programme focuses on development assistance programmes 
as well as community involvement via direct and indirect formal 
education programmes such as our bursary programme. 

The CSI policy provides clear evaluation guidelines that assist 
the responsible parties to determine which projects to support. 
Authority is granted to management within certain expenditure 
limits, and any amount or cause, which falls outside the 
policy, is referred to the Board for approval. The allocation of 
resources towards the Group’s CSI programmes and initiatives 
are approved as part of the annual budget approval process.

Bursaries 

We provide bursaries to learners with great academic potential 
and interpersonal attributes. During the course of their studies, 
students are offered mentorship from within the business and 
vacation work in preparation for the working world. Since the 
inception of this bursary program in 2013, we have thus far 
sponsored 29 students enrolled at local and regional academic 
institutions amounting to N$2.8 million.

Amos Meercat Syllabus project

We made a N$25 000 contribution towards the stationery for 
the Amos Meercat Syllabus project.  Many pre-schools or early 
childhood development centres exist on farms and in informal 
settlements or rural areas and villages but few are equipped 
with the necessary skills and material to ensure that learners 
are educationally and emotionally adequately prepared to 
enter the formal primary education system of Namibia. This 
project aims to bridge this gap to enable these children to 
be in a better position when they enter the formal schooling 
system.  The Amos Meercat Syllabus project currently reaches 
annually approximately 4 500 learners between the ages of 5 
and 6 years across the country.  As part of this project teachers 
are provided with, amongst others, general basic stationery 
needed to present the lessons and each learner receives basic 
stationery to enable them to use their workbooks effectively 
and master the necessary skills.

COVID-19 social response

We have committed N$500 000 to contribute towards efforts 
aimed at responding to the impact of COVID-19. In partnership 
with initiatives such as the National Solidarity Fund and 
the Pupkewitz Foundation, as well as other social welfare 
organisations we have worked to assist those that were the 
hardest hit by the consequences of the economic shut-down. 
We will continue to look for opportunities where we can make 
further impactful contributions.

We continue to actively engage all our stakeholders to further 
understand the impact of COVID-19 on them as well as their 
planned responses thereto to enable us to identify opportunities 
where we can play a role.

NAM student annual investment challenge

The Group launched the NAM Student Investment Competition 
that ran from March through to October 2020. The competition 
was open to local full-time university students and aimed 
to give participants insight into the thrilling industry of 
investments, with a focus on the dynamics of stock selection. 
158 students, grouped in teams of up to 5, participants took 
part in the challenge, and the three teams with the highest 
portfolio values at the close of the competition were awarded 
monetary prizes. In addition, the three leading teams on 30 June 
2020 were granted an opportunity to meet with the respective 
CEOs of three NSX listed companies. The sessions with the 
executives aimed to give students raw insight into the working 
lives of the executives and a glimpse of what it takes to run a 
listed company in Namibia. The Investment Challenge initiative 
is part of the Group’s continued efforts in making impactful 
contributions towards the welfare of the nation. 

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

 Number of
shareholders 

 % of
shareholders 

 Number of
shares 

 % of
shares 

Range of shareholders

1 - 99 shares  28 8,54%  1 350 0,00%
100 - 499 shares  56 17,07%  9 400 0,00%
500 - 999 shares  27 8,23%  15 190 0,01%
1 000 - 1 999 shares  55 16,77%  59 950 0,03%
2 000 - 2 999 shares  23 7,01%  48 200 0,02%
3 000 - 3 999 shares  7 2,13%  21 000 0,01%
4 000 - 4 999 shares  2 0,61%  8 000 0,00%
5 000 - 9 999 shares  54 16,46%  315 000 0,16%
10 000 shares and above  76 23,18%  199 521 910 99,77%
Total shareholders  328 100,00%

Total number of shares issued  200 000 000 100,00%

Public and non-public shareholders

Public shareholders  324 98,78%  77 809 015 38,90%
Non-public shareholders  4 1,22%  122 190 985 61,10%

 328 100,00%  200 000 000 100,00%

Category

Corporate bodies  11 3,35%  80 284 118 40,14%
Nominee companies  32 9,76%  64 369 034 32,18%
Private individuals  281 85,67%  10 729 648 5,37%
Trusts  4 1,22%  44 617 200 22,31%

 328 100,00%  200 000 000 100,00%

 Number 
of shares

 % of 
shares

Large shareholders - more than 5% of share capital

Coronation Investment Management (Pty) Ltd  80 096 518 40,05%
The Orban Street Trust  42 000 800 21,00%
Standard Bank Namibia Nominees (Pty) Ltd  22 905 287 11,45%
First National Bank Namibia (Nominees) (Pty) Ltd  36 921 419 18,46%

 181 924 024 90,96%

Directors' interest in share capital
2020 2019

Number of shares

Directors' direct holding
RG Young  93 667  93 667 
E Emvula (resigned 31 July 2020)  -    1 250 000 I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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1.26%

THE NAM STAFF 
SHARE SCHEME 

21.00%

THE ORBAN
 STREET TRUST

37.65%

PUBLIC AND 
INSTITUTIONS

100%

NAMIBIA UNIT TRUST 
MANAGERS LTD

NAMIBIA ASSET 
MANAGEMENT LTD

40.05%

CORONATION  
INVESTMENT  

MANAGEMENT  
SA (PTY) LTD

0.04%
DIRECTORS

OUR SHAREHOLDERS

We aim to create sustainable value for shareholders by:
• delivering consistent operational and f inancial 

performance;
• adhering to the highest corporate governance requirements;
• maintaining significant distributions of free cash flow; and
• continuous engagement with shareholders.

It is important for shareholders to understand that NAM always 
places the needs of clients first. Our business is cyclical, and 
revenue is geared to market returns and the level of performance 
we generate on behalf of clients.

Fundamentally, we are a cash-generative business, with regular 
and significant distributions of free cash flow generated paid out 
to shareholders. This is unlikely to result in a smooth earnings 
stream. Short-term volatility is intrinsic in our business model, 
and shareholders should assess the business by looking at the 
long-term value it has delivered over a meaningful time period.

OUR CORPORATE STRUCTURE

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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Business 
objective Key stakeholder (s) Key stakeholder (s) needs

Investment 
performance

Clients 
Intermediaries

•  Superior long-term investment 
performance

•  Appropriate product offering aligned 
with needs

Client service 
excellence

Clients 
Intermediaries

•  Access to information that is easy to 
understand 

•  Open and effective channels of 
communication 

•  Accurate, appropriate and timely 
reporting

Governance

Government
Regulatory bodies 
Clients
Shareholders

•  Compliance with regulations
•  Transparent and proactive engagement 

with regulators and policy makers 
•  Employing general good business 

practices and principles

Employee 
development 
and retention

Employees

•  Recognition and reward for excellence 
•  Transformation
•  Open channels for communication
•  Access to continuous learning and 

development
• Ownership culture

Shareholder 
value creation
Social 
investment

Shareholders
Communities

•  Sustainable business model and 
dividends 

• Strong revenue generation 
•  Community development and 

upliftment

HOW WE CREATE VALUE FOR OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Our focus on achieving the best possible investment returns for our 
clients in turn creates value for our other stakeholders - including 
shareholders, regulators and government, communities and our 
people.

Our stakeholder needs and our responses thereto are broadly 
catagorised as follows:

THE FINANCIAL VALUE CREATED IS ILLUSTRATED BELOW:

The Group continues to make a meaning ful contribution, 
commensurate with its size, to its various stakeholders. In respect 
of the N$99.7 million (2019: N$83.3 million) revenue generated 
during the period, N$7.2 million (2019: N$7.3 million) was paid 
to the government in respect of taxes, N$5.8 million (2019: N$8.1 
million) was paid in salaries and bonuses to employees, N$14 million 
(2019: N$18 million) will be paid in dividends to the company’s 
shareholders, and the remainder will be reinvested in the business.

69%

16%

8% 7%

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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Revenue (N$) Total comprehensive income (N$) Headline earnings per share (cents)

Net asset value per share (cents) Dividends per share (cents) Share price (cents) at 30 September

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

120 000 000

100 000 000

80 000 000

40 000 000

60 000 000

20 000 000

17 000 000

16 000 000

15 000 000

14 000 000

13 000 000

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

18,00
16,00
14,00
12,00
10,00

8,00
6,00
4,00
2,00

9,00
8,00
7,00
6,00
5,00
4,00
3,00
2,00
1,00

80

70
60

50
40
30
20
10

0

-

- -

10,40
10,20
10,00

9,80
9,60
9,40
9,20
9,90
8,80

10,60
10,80
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JOINT CHAIRMAN AND ACTING-CEO STATEMENT

2020 will always be remembered as the year in which a novel 
coronavirus brought the global economy and community to a 
standstill. As was the case with the rest of the world, Namibia 
implemented a hard lockdown, which had a significant impact 
on all businesses and citizens. Even though this swift action by 
the government went a long way to contain the spread of the 
virus, and while every life lost to COVID-19 is one too many, 
the reality is that the scale of the economic humanitarian crisis 
outweighs that of the health crisis.

The economic hardship caused by the onset of the lockdown 
has further compromised already beleaguered businesses 
and households, which has impacted the savings habits of 
Namibians. The economic consequences are still unknown and 
will only become clear in the months to come. Developments 
in the vaccine space are promising, and while it is early days, 
this will be a game changer.

Across the world, governments, policymakers and business 
leaders struggled to find the balance between attending to 
the humanitarian crisis and trying to mitigate the economic 
damage of the consequent lockdowns.

Amid this widespread disruption, as the manager of N$17 billion 
of assets on behalf of Namibian institutions and citizens, NAM 
remained fully operational throughout the national lockdown. 
And we are grateful for having been able to continue fulfilling 
our fiduciary and civic duties.

THE LOCAL ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The advent of COVID-19 has only served to amplify the existing 
growth challenges facing the Namibian economy. In his October 

Mid-term Budget Review, Minister of Finance Ipumbu Shiimi 
provided an update on the prevailing conditions. Namibia has 
been in recession for approximately five years and the country is 
now on track to record one of largest budget deficits on record, 
estimated to be in the region of 12% of GDP. This, coupled with 
an extremely challenging debt maturity profile, will require the 
bold implementation of the policy interventions announced in 
the March 2020 Budget Speech.

THE GLOBAL ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The economic damage and fiscal cost of the first wave of 
COVID-19 are still unknown, and the second wave of infections 
in a number of countries is preventing a return to ‘normal’, with 
economic activity slowing again. Early signs of an economic 
rebound in the second half of 2020 were relatively good, but 
momentum has started fading, raising the risk of a fourth 
quarter setback, with growth faltering as containment strategies 
intensify.

In October, the IMF confirmed that COVID-19 has caused a 
global recession that is projected to result in a 4.4% contraction 
in growth. The flooding of developed markets by central bank 
monetary easing and enormous fiscal stimulus programmes 
will aid recovery, albeit likely disjointed and anaemic. Globally, 
geopolitical tensions will continue as the trade standoff between 
the US and China continues to play out, although the recent 
Biden win in the US election could see a slight easing. Brexit 
will also impact the UK economy and investor sentiment.

Broad uncertainties abound as second waves of COVID-19 
infections are sweeping through the Northern Hemisphere, and 
lockdowns are re-instated. The full impact of the pandemic will 

only be known in the fullness of time. At a time when we need 
it most, developments in the vaccine provide a ray of hope.

BUSINESS REVIEW

NAM is an active asset management firm and remains one of 
the largest custodians of savings assets in Namibia. We continue 
to offer a diversified range of products to both retail and 
institutional clients, including offshore investment solutions.

NAM employees and management adapted swiftly to remote 
working conditions and we have remained fully operational 
throughout the pandemic. However, we are not yet able to 
engage with any of our current or prospective clients on a face-
to-face basis. I would like to acknowledge our investment and 
management teams, the Board and all employees for a seamless 
shift to remote work and ongoing service excellence, in spite of 
the personal demands each individual experienced as a result 
of lockdown.

After reaching a nadir in the second quarter of 2020, markets 
experienced a strong rebound in the second of half of the 
calendar year. Our portfolios ref lect this in the strong 
performance they have delivered for our clients over the long 
term.

Due to lockdown, the Namibian savings pool continued to 
shrink on already negative sentiment and stressed household 
budgets, exacerbated by business closures, loss of household 
incomes and retirement fund contribution holidays. NAM’s 
experience is in line with our estimate of the overall industry 
experience. While we have seen a gradual recovery in the market 
value of the assets we manage, AuM is down by 11.0% on net 

ANTON PILLAY 
CHAIRMAN AND ACTING-CEO

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020
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outflows of N$725.9 million from our institutional AuM. Retail 
AuM increased marginally by 4.8% due to modest inflows across 
our unit trust funds and market performance.

In spite of a very tough operating environment, NAM’s revenue 
increased by 10.6% and revenue from contracts with customers 
was up 19.7%, largely due to better performance fees earned 
during the current financial year.

As an innovative firm that continuously seeks to identify and 
provide investment solutions for our clients, I am pleased 
to report on the successful launch of the NAM Coronation 
Optimum Growth Fund in March 2020. The new offering 
complements our current product range by providing a global 
investment solution that is unconstrained by local restrictions 
and offers our clients the benefit of increased diversification.

INVESTMENT IN OUR BUSINESS

In a fast-paced and competitive industry data and technology 
management remain key to ensuring business efficiency and 
sustainability. To this end we have continued to build out 
our information technology and systems infrastructure. This 
includes continuously improving our back-office processes 
and refreshing our client reports. We are also investigating 
digital solutions that will allow for automation of retail client 
transactions. We will continue to invest in our business 
and people and extract synergies and benefits from system 
implementations in our quest to remain a world-class asset 
management company.

Amid the prevailing turbulent conditions, we will continue to 
construct diversified portfolios that can absorb unanticipated 
shocks. With an ongoing focus on valuations and further 
deepening our understanding of ESG factors, we will apply 
our in-depth proprietary research to identify investment 
opportunities that are attractive on a risk-adjusted basis to 
generate long-term value for all our stakeholders.

Good governance is critical to our business. The enactment 
of the Financial Institutions Market (FIM) Bill is eminent. The 
Bill aims to consolidate and align the laws regulating financial 
institutions, financial intermediaries, and financial markets 
in Namibia. To this end, we have appointed an expert who 
will perform a FIM Bill readiness assessment as well as assist 
NAM in analysing and remedying any gaps which may currently 
exist in our business that may be a consequence of the new 
legislation.

ACTIVE CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP AND COVID-19 SOCIAL
RESPONSE

We have committed N$500,000 to contribute towards efforts 
aimed at responding to the impact of COVID-19 and we have 
deployed these funds to assist those who have been severely 
impacted by the pandemic.

Over and above our COVID-19 relief efforts, we continue 
to promote education to augment and build pipeline talent 
in the local asset management arena. Our bursary scheme 
provides full bursaries to promising students from their second 
academic year onwards. Over the years we have supported over 
29 students to the tune of N$2.8 million.

We continue to pro-actively engage our clients and stakeholders 
with a view to offering support and seeking opportunities for 
collaboration during these unusual times.

LOOKING FORWARD

During the course of the year, we announced that Eino Emvula 
had resigned as the CEO of NAM. The Board expresses gratitude 
for the significant contribution he has made during his time 
with the company. I am delighted to announce the appointment 
of Tarah Shaanika as the new CEO of NAM and look forward 
to his contribution to the Group.

The Board also commends all NAM employees for enacting a 
strong sense of ownership in what has been a personally and 
professionally demanding environment.

It has been a privilege to continue to operate at full capacity 
during the economic lockdown and to retain our full employee 
complement. Looking ahead, we will continue to focus on 
delivering on our strategic objectives, which have assisted the 
business in navigating through many uncertainties.

Overall, due to the prudent management of resources over the 
years, NAM is in a strong financial position, which bodes well 
in these uncertain times.

We are grateful to our clients for their ongoing trust and 
business. I would also like to extend my thanks to my fellow 
Board members and the management team for their skilful 
management of the COVID-19 operating environment over and 
above delivering on their annual strategic and operational goals.

Anton Pillay

Chairman and Acting-CEO
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OUR COMMITMENT TO GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (the Board) is committed to the 
principles of effective corporate governance and the application 
of the highest ethical standards in the conduct of its business 
and affairs. 

This report details the key policies, processes and structures 
that are applied in order to achieve a balanced approach to 
corporate governance, including the principles of the Corporate 
Governance Code for Namibia (NamCode) (the Code). 

The Board is satisfied that the Group has applied the principles 
of the Code and that these principles are embedded in many of 
the policies and procedures governing corporate conduct. The 
below table provides explanations for the identified instances 
where the principles were not applied:

THE ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board serves as the focal point and custodian of 
corporate governance and is primarily responsible for the 
strategic leadership of the Group. The Board also approves 
the formulation and implementation of strategy to create 
sustainable value for all stakeholders while maintaining 
its commitment to good corporate governance and ethical 
leadership. 

The Board is ultimately responsible for the development of 
strategy and key policies and delegates the implementation 
thereof to the management team while remaining ultimately 
accountable for the due and proper fulfilment of its 
responsibilities.

The Board’s responsibilities include:
• monitoring the Group’s performance;

• overseeing the governance of risk management, compliance 
and information technology;

• ensuring that an effective control environment is in place;
• ensuring that the Group remunerates fairly, responsibly 

and transparently; and
• ensuring that the Group’s culture and values support the 

corporate objectives.

The Board is accountable to shareholders and is responsible for 
overseeing the management of relationships with the various 
stakeholders. In fulfilling its responsibilities, the Board is aware 
of the importance of achieving economic performance while 
conforming to governance principles. All directors are also 
entitled to seek independent professional advice regarding 
the affairs of the Group. The Company Secretary may assist 
directors, Board committees and their members in obtaining 
professional advice.

NAMCODE Principle Explanation

Principle 2.5: The Board should elect a chairman of the Board who is an independent 
non-executive director. The CEO of the Company should not also fulfill the role of 
Chairman of the Board.

As a result of the resignation of the CEO during the year the Board took a collective decision to appoint the Chairman as Acting-CEO, whilst the process of recruiting a replacement was 
ongoing. The LID and the independent non-executive directors play a key role in ensuring that decision-making is not concentrated in one individual. The situation will be resolved 
when the new CEO assume his duties on 4 January 2021.

Principle 2.16: The Board should elect a chairman of the Board who is an independent 
non-executive director.

The Chairman of the Board is a non-executive director. While he is not deemed to be independent due to his role at Coronation (a significant shareholder of the Company) the Board is 
of the opinion that this does not impede his ability to act independently. The composition of the Board, the majority of which are independent non-executives, also acts as a mitigating 
factor in ensuring that the objectives of this principle are met. The Board has also appointed a Lead Independent Director who is an independent non-executive director to ensure that 
any associated risks are dealt with appropriately.

Principle 2.23: The Board Committees should consist of a majority of independent non- 
executive directors.

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee does not consist of a majority of independent non-executive directors but one independent non-executive director (who is also the 
Chairman) and one non-executive director who is not deemed to be independent due to his role at Coronation (a significant shareholder of the Company). The Board is however of the 
opinion that this does not impede his ability to act independently and is therefore of the opinion that the current constitution of this committee is adequate to achieve its objectives.
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ROLES OF THE CHAIRMAN, LEAD INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTOR AND CEO

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, which 
involves exercising sound judgement based on knowledge, skills 
and experience. The lead independent director assists the Board 
in matters specifically delegated to him, lead the Board where 
the chairman is not available or in any other instance where the 
chairman is conflicted and to assist the chairman in all other 
matters where necessary. The CEO, supported by the executives, 
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group and 
the execution of the Group’s strategy. 

The roles and duties of the independent non-executive chairman 
and the CEO are generally separate and clearly defined. Given the 
dual role of the Chairman and Acting-CEO, the Lead Independent 
Director played a crucial role in ensuring that there is a balance 
of authority and power and that no individual has unrestricted 
decision-making powers.

GROUP GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES

Leadership is effected through a unitary Board that comprises 
a majority of independent non-executive directors. The Board 
has delegated certain of its functions and responsibilities to 
two committees, namely the Audit and Risk Committee as well 
as the Remuneration and Nominations Committee.

These committees serve to assist the Board in effectively 
discharging its duties by having oversight over key matters 
delegated to it and function according to clearly articulated 
terms of reference. The committee chairman report to the 
Board at each Board meeting on matters considered by their 
respective committees.

The Board has unfettered access to management, who 
frequently consult with directors, individually and collectively, 
on a broad range of topics.

BOARD CHANGES

Eino Emvula has resigned as CEO of NAM, and by extension 
as a director from the Board, to pursue other professional 

endeavours. The members of the Board express their gratitude 
for the significant contribution he made during his enure. 

The Board is pleased to announce the appointment of Tarah 
Shaanika as an executive director and chief executive officer 
of Namibian Asset Management effective 4 January 2021. 
The Board welcomes Tarah and is confident that he and the 
executive management team will ensure the company delivers 
on its strategy and looks forward to working with him in his 
new role. 

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 30 September 2020, NAM’s unitary Board comprised of 
one executive director and seven non-executive directors. The 
Board deems two on the non-executive directors as not being 
independent given their role at Coronation who is a major 
shareholder of NAM. The number and stature of independent 
non-executive directors serving on the Board ensures that 
objectivity is achieved and that an appropriate balance of power 
and authority is maintained on the Board. The Board, through 
the REMCO, conducts an annual independence assessment of 
all long-serving directors.

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer is 
automatically appointed to the Board.  The Board is responsible 
for appointing the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief 
Financial Officer. 

THE BELOW DEPICTS DETAILS AROUND THE BOARD 
COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY.

GENDER

37% 
FEMALE

63%
MALE

RACE

62% 
BLACK

38%
WHITE

AGE

35-45 YEARS 

>55 YEARS
46-55 YEARS

3

1

4

TENURE

TENURE

5-7 YEARS >11 YEARS8-11 YEARS

3 2 3
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The Group applies a formalised and transparent nomination and appointment 
process to the Board. Our Articles of Association provide that at least a third 
of the directors should retire at each Annual General Meeting. In line with 
this requirement, the following directors retired during the current year and 
have made themselves available for re-appointment. Their re-appointment 
will be tabled for approval at the next annual general meeting:
• Mrs Birgit Rossouw
• Mrs Aimee Rhoda
• Mr Anton Pillay

Name Date 
Appointed Age Status

Meetings 
attended 
(out of 4)

Nationality

Anton Pillay 20-Feb-09 51 Non-executive Chairman and Acting CEO 4 RSA
Gordon Young 01-Sept-01 67 Independent non-executive 4 RSA
Elize Angula 01-Mar-12 50 Independent non-executive 3 Namibia
Birgit Rossouw 30-Nov-06 44 Independent non-executive 4 Namibia
Tarah Shaanika 01-Apr-15 50 Independent non-executive 4 Namibia
Schalk Walters 01-Mar-12 54 LID and Independent non-executive 4 Namibia
Aimee Rhoda 01-Mar-13 41 Non-executive 4 RSA
Ulrich Eiseb 01-Oct-14 39 Executive director (CFO) 4 Namibia

ANTON PILLAY  |  BBUSSC, CA (SA), CFA, AMP (HARVARD)

Anton was appointed Chief Executive Officer of Coronation Fund Managers in February 2013 
and has been a member of its Board since June 2009. He joined Coronation in January 2006 from 
BoE (Pty) Ltd, where he held a number of key positions and directorships. Anton has extensive 
knowledge and experience of the investment and banking industry. Anton was appointed to 
the NAM Board in February 2009.

BIRGIT ROSSOUW  |  CA (NAM), CIA, BPHIL (ETHICS)

Birgit is one of the few internationally Certified Internal Auditors in the country. She completed 
her articles with PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) in 2001, qualifying as a chartered accountant. 
In 2002 she was appointed as Group Financial Manager of NAM. Although Birgit left the Group 
in August 2004 to join Consult Buro (Pty) Ltd as a shareholder and director, she continued 
to provide advice and consulting services until she was appointed to the Board of NAM in 
November 2006. She also serves on the Board of Standard Bank Namibia.

GORDON YOUNG

Gordon was Chief Executive Officer of NAM from 2001 to early 2004. He has been a member 
of the NAM Board for thirteen years and has a strong know ledge base of the South African 
and Na mibian investment industry. Before contributing his valuable experience to NAM, he 
was a group strategist with African Harvest. Gordon is currently an investment adviser to a 
South African empowerment company.

AIMEE RHODA  |  BBUSSC, CA (SA)

Aimee, a qualified chartered accountant, joined Coronation Fund Managers in 2007 and was 
appointed financial manager in April 2008. Prior to joining Coronation, she was an assistant 
manager in Deloitte’s Special Services Group division. Aimee was appointed to the NAM Board 
in March 2013.

ANTON PILLAY

BIRGIT ROSSOUW

GORDON YOUNG

AIMEE RHODA

DIRECTOR PROFILES
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SCHALK WALTERS

ELIZE ANGULA

ULRICH EISEB

TARAH SHAANIKA

SCHALK WALTERS  |  CA (NAM), CA (SA), CIA

Schalk was a partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) in Windhoek for 11 years, where he was the 
Namibian service line leader for the advisory practice until 30 June 2010. His field of expertise is corporate 
governance, focusing on enterprise risk management, sustainability and internal control processes. Upon 
his withdrawal as a partner from PwC, he formed the consulting practice Fiducia Corporate Governance 
Solutions, which provides a wide range of specialist corporate governance consulting services to clients 
in the private and public sectors. He was appointed to the NAM Board in March 2012.

ELIZE ANGULA  |  BPROC

Elize is a partner and legal practitioner at AngulaCo Incorporated. She was president of the Law Society 
of Namibia during 2005 and 2006 and prior to that she served on the council as a member. Elize has 
14 years’ post- admission experience in civil and commercial litigation and practices in the High and 
Supreme Court of Namibia. She also serves as a director on the boards of Foshini Retail Group (Pty) Ltd 
and Frans Indongo Group (Pty) Ltd. She was appointed to the NAM Board in March 2012.

ULRICH EISEB (CFO AND COMPANY SECRETARY)  |  CA (NAM), CA (SA)

Ulrich was an audit manager at Deloitte prior to joining NAM as Chief Financial Officer and 
Company Secretary. During his time at Deloitte he was responsible for entities within the finance, 
telecommunications and mining industries. He is a qualified chartered accountant and also holds a 
level 1 certification for key individuals issued by the Financial Services Board of South Africa. He was 
appointed to the Board on 01 October 2014.

TARAH SHAANIKA  |  BA (ECONOMICS AND MEDIA STUDIES), MIB

Tarah is the former Chief Executive Officer of the Namibia Chamber of Commerce and Industry. He 
holds a Bachelor of Economics and Media Studies degree from the University of Namibia. He also holds 
a Masters in International Business (MIB) from the Polytechnic of Namibia. He serves on various boards 
of directors including New Era Publications Corporation, NAMZIM Newspapers (Pty) Ltd and Team 
Namibia. He was appointed to the NAM Board on 01 April 2015.

DIRECTOR PROFILES
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BOARD APPRAISALS

An appraisal of the Board and its committees has been 
concluded during the financial year with reference to their 
charters and the Code. The Board and its committees are 
satisfied with the outcome of this appraisal.

DIRECTOR DEVELOPMENT

The Group has a formal induction programme for new directors. 
Ongoing support and resources are provided to directors to 
enable them to extend and refresh their skills, knowledge and 
familiarity with the Group and the industry.

Professional development and training is provided in three 
complementary ways:
• Regular updates on changes and proposed changes in laws 

and regulations and other industry related matters affecting 
the Group

• Arrangements to ensure directors are familiar with the 
Group’s operations

• Opportunities for professional and skills training

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board selects and appoints the Company Secretary and 
recognises the importance of this role in entrenching good 
corporate governance. All directors have unlimited access 
to the services of the Company Secretary, who in turn has 
access to appropriate resources in the provision of this support. 
The Board is satisfied with the performance of the Company 
Secretary in executing the tasks as recommended by the Code 
and as required by relevant legislation. Given the size of the 
Group we deem it appropriate that the Company Secretary is 
also an executive director and confirm that this is unlikely to 
impede on his duties.

ETHICS

The directors and employees are required to maintain the 
highest ethical standards; ensuring business practices are 
above reproach.

The Group has adopted a formal Code of Ethics, which all 
employees have to sign and agree to. This Code of Ethics 
includes stipulations on performance and reward, risk and 
integrity, values and aspirations, confidentiality, disclosures 
of conflicts of interests, restrictions on share dealing activities 
and dealings with the press.

All employees are required to complete a six-monthly 
declaration that includes, inter alia, the provision of information 
and/or declarations in relation to outside interests, conflicts 
of interest, and general compliance with the requirements of 
the Group’s Code of Ethics. The directors are also required 
to complete these declarations annually. Ethical incidents 
are reported quarterly to the Audit and Risk Committee. The 
Board believes that the ethical standards are being met and 
the stipulations of the Code of Ethics are adhered to.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board places considerable importance on effective 
communication with shareholders and therefore engages with 
shareholders, based on the mutual understanding of objectives. 
It is the responsibility of the Board as a whole to ensure that 
satisfactory dialogue takes place. The Chief Executive Officer 
is the first point of contact with shareholders.

The Annual General Meeting remains an important opportunity 
for shareholders to meet the Board and discuss any concerns 
they may have. The Board utilises the Annual General Meeting 
to communicate with institutional and private investors and 
welcomes their participation.

All the directors were present at the Annual General Meeting 
held on 22 February 2020. 

Details of the resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General 
Meeting on 26 February 2021 can be found in the Notice of the 
Meeting at the back of this publication.

INSIDER TRADING

No employee or director may deal, directly or indirectly, in NAM 
shares on the basis of unpublished price-sensitive information. 
No directors or employees may trade in NAM shares during 
embargo periods determined by the Board. These include 
periods between the end of the interim and financial year-
end reporting periods and the announcement of the financial 
results for such periods.

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Audit and Risk Committee 
(the Committee) to assist in the oversight and review of 
the financial, operational and risk management activities 
of the Group, including information technology risks. The 
Committee is responsible for ensuring the integrity of the 
financial reporting process, internal reporting and controls, 
management of strategic, major financial and operational risks 
and the internal and external audit processes based on sound 
principles of accountability, transparency and responsibility.

COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE

The Committee consist of three members all of whom are 
independent non-executive directors, except for Mrs A Rhoda 
who is not deemed independent due to her employment at 
Coronation; however the Board does not have any reason 

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0

G O V E R N A N C E  R E P O R T   /   2 3



to believe that this will impair her ability to add value in an 
objective manner to the Committee. The Committee held 
four scheduled meetings during the financial year. In addition 
thereto a separate ad hoc meeting was held to review the risk 
register in detail.

Member Attendance Status

Schalk Walters 100% Independent non-executive Chairman

Aimee Rhoda 100% Non-executive director

Birgit Rossouw 100% Independent non-executive director

The Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Internal 
Auditors and External Auditors attend all meetings by 
invitation.

DISCHARGE OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee discharges its responsibilities for the whole 
Group. It serves in an  advisory  capacity  to  the  Board  and  
assists the directors in discharging their duties relating to the 
safeguarding of assets, the operation of adequate systems, risk 
management and internal controls, the review of financial 
information and the preparation of the annual financial 
statements, the internal and external audit process, as well  
as  their oversight responsibility for the integrated annual  
report. This includes assuring   the   Board   that   adequate   
operating and financial internal controls are in place and that 
material  risks have been identified  and  are  being  effectively  
managed  and monitored.

In fulfilling its responsibility of assisting the Board in 
discharging its duty to shareholders, the Committee is guided 
by   a charter, approved by the Board. The Chairman of the 
Committee reports on the activities of the Committee at all 
meetings of the Board and attends the Annual General Meetings 
as recommended by the Code.

The executive directors and the internal and external auditors 
have unrestricted access to the Chairman of the Committee.

The Committee is satisfied with the expertise and adequacy of 

resources within the finance function. The Committee is of the 
opinion that the Chief Financial Officer has the appropriate 
expertise and experience to meet his responsibilities in that 
position. In making these assessments, feedback was obtained 
from, amongst others, the external and internal auditors and 
the Remuneration and Nominations Committee. Based on the 
processes followed and assurances obtained, the Committee is 
of the view that the accounting practices are effective and that 
the Chief Financial Officer is competent.

The Committee has satisfied itself, through enquiry, that the 
auditor of the Group is independent, as defined by the Companies 
Act. The Committee, in consultation with executive management, 
agreed the audit fee for the 2020 financial year. The fee is 
considered appropriate for the work that could reasonably have 
been foreseen at that time. The auditor performed a satisfactory 
audit which covered all the significant risks to the Group and 
submitted their report accordingly.

Additionally, the approval of all non-audit-related services is 
governed by an appropriate policy which sets the limit as a 
percentage of the audit fee. No non-audit services have been 
performed during the year. 

Meetings were held with the external auditor and internal auditor 
in the absence of management, where concerns could be raised. 
The auditor did not have any concerns to raise.

The Committee is committed to the benefits of the combined 
assurance model and obtains an update at its quarterly meetings 
from management on any external assurances that were received 
during each quarter of the financial year. The external assurances 
have also been linked to the risk mitigation steps in the Group’s 
risk register.

Input is obtained from external auditors, where appropriate, in 
evaluating the internal audit coverage plan to ensure that the 
work to be performed by the internal auditor would complement 
the external audit work. 

The internal audit function has been outsourced to Deloitte 
Namibia. The Committee is responsible for the appointment 

and performance evaluation of the internal audit function. The 
Committee also approves the annual internal audit coverage 
plan. The internal audit coverage plan for the 2020/2021 financial 
year is linked to our combined assurance model as well as to 
the risk register as per the principles of the combined assurance 
approach envisaged in the Code. The internal auditor completed 
their 2019/2020 financial year internal audit coverage plan and 
there were no significant findings reported.

A significant portion of NAM’s key operating activities are 
outsourced to Coronation, Intembeko Fund Administrators 
and JP Morgan, and these activities are subjected to regular 
internal and external audit reviews by their respective internal 
and external audit functions. The Committee has developed 
processes to keep abreast of any material breakdowns in controls 
at the outsourced service providers which may impact on the 
Group’s operations. Our external auditors review the ISAE 3402 
reports issued in respect of the controls at entities to which 
certain functions have been outsourced to determine any report 
items, which may have an impact on NAM’s operations.

The Board is satisfied with the ability of the Committee and 
confirms that it has effectively discharged its obligations as 
required. Four meetings are scheduled for the 2021 financial 
year.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

The Group Remuneration and Nominations Committee 
(Remco) is responsible for the implementation of the Group’s 
remuneration policy. The Remco also has the responsibility to 
ensure that the Group’s nominations policy caters  for succession  
planning across key areas of the business, and to ensure that the 
Board is resourced with individuals who have the appropriate 
expertise, qualifications and experience to fulfil the role of 
company director.

The Remco is responsible for key decisions regarding 
remuneration, including those with implications for the overall 
risk management of the Group.

The Remco charter provides comprehensive details on the 
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composition, roles and responsibilities of the Remco. The Remco 
met twice during the year and its Chairman reports back on the 
activities of the Remco at the meetings of the Board.

COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE

The Remco is constituted in such a way as to enable it to exercise 
competent and independent judgement on remuneration 
policies and practices. The Remco should have at least two 
independent members, ideally with experience and knowledge of 
the investment industry, which are necessary to exercise sound 
judgement. An independent non-executive director chairs the 
Remco. The other member of the Remco is the Chairman of the 
Board who is also a non-executive director. 

The Committee held two scheduled meetings during the 
financial year. 

Member Attendance Status

Gordon Young 100% Independent non-executive Chairman

Anton Pillay 100% Non-executive director

The members of the executive management attend all Remco 
meetings in an ex officio capacity.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group’s remuneration policy applies to all our employees 
and non-executive directors, which comprises Namibia Asset 
Management Limited, its subsidiaries and all controlled entities. 
It is aligned with our long-term corporate objectives and strategy. 

Embedded in its structure and implementation is the 
understanding that one of the most significant assets of the 
Group is its employees. It is their collective output that drives 
the success of our business and their retention and appropriate 
incentivisation is key to our long-term success.

Our remuneration policy is accordingly aimed at ensuring that 
the remuneration process supports our values, specifically:
• always putting clients first;

• focusing on long-term value creation; 
• creating a culture of ownership; 
• recognising that the Group is a team-based organisation;
• helping to attract, retain and motivate highly talented and 

sought-after individuals;
• rewarding employees for outstanding and excellent 

performance. 

This is essential if the Company’s remuneration process is 
to successfully support its strong performance culture and is 
achieved by ensuring that the remuneration structures and 
implementation are simple and easy to understand, and result 
in as few unintended consequences as possible.

Our goal is to ensure that the remuneration process is 
holistic enough to be able to assess performance and ensure 
that the rewards for excellent performance align employees’ 
interests with that of the broader Company and its clients 
and shareholders. It is therefore important that an effective 
balance is achieved between cash and deferred remuneration. 

It is also critical to ensure that good corporate governance in 
relation to remuneration is applied and that the approach to 
remuneration is consistent with, and promotes, sound and 
effective risk management.

Malus and clawback provisions will be applied, subject to 
local labour law compliance, on employee remuneration 
on a prospective basis as of the 2020 financial year in line 
with international best practice. Malus and clawback will be 
applied if an employee has been found guilty of a broad range 
of transgressions. 

REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES

A key characteristic of the remuneration policy is that it is 
simple and avoids complicated structures that can result in 
unintended outcomes. Total employee remuneration consists 
of fixed and variable (performance-based) remuneration for all 
employees of the Group.

FIXED REMUNERATION

Fixed remuneration is based on an employee’s role and 
responsibilities and on market conditions. For senior employees, 
we endeavour to set fixed remuneration below market-related 
levels. In the case of its most senior employees, the differential 
should be material.

VARIABLE REMUNERATION

Variable remuneration is directly dependent on Company earnings 
and is paid from an allocation of a maximum of 20% of audited 
pre-tax profit.

The variable remuneration component enables employees to 
share in the value that they have created for all stakeholders. 
Its application has been the cornerstone of our success over 
more than two decades and underpins our values. It entrenches 
ownership and a strong performance culture, and aligns employees 
and shareholders’ interests through the symmetrical manner in 
which employees share in the Group’s success and any decline 
in earnings. 

In determining the total remuneration of an employee, due 
consideration is given to individual performance over the longer 
term, as well as the most recent 12-month period. An individual’s 
performance as part of the team in which he/she operates is also 
considered. The performance assessment process is holistic and 
gives as much consideration to qualitative as to quantitative 
metrics.

The genesis of the agreed annual variable component of the 
remuneration policy occurred at the inception of the Group when 
variable remuneration was introduced to share the risks and 
rewards of ownership and incentivise employees to build a leading 
fund management Group. The annual variable remuneration 
component is calculated up to a maximum of 20% of the audited 
annual consolidated net operating profit before taxation of the 
Group (the variable remuneration formula). It is a tool that has 
demonstrated its value to all stakeholders and represents a 
contractual commitment between the Group and its employees.
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The annual variable remuneration component is allocated to 
all employees of the Group on an individual basis and is not 
allocated to departments. The allocations to employees may 
include the following components:

Short term:
• Cash

Long term:
• Payments for restraint of trade undertakings and notice 

period extensions
• Deferred remuneration payments, which are allocated to 

the Orban Street Trust

Deferred remuneration payments are utilised to purchase either 
NAM shares or NUTM or Coronation unit trust products, which 
are allocated to eligible employees. These allocations vest over 
at least a three-year period. As a meritocracy, the same terms 
and conditions apply to all eligible employees. These allocations 
are made to employees who possess skills key to the continued 
success of the Group as demonstrated by their contribution 
and expertise. The Remco may approve any other form of 
remuneration or incentivisation from time to time.

Senior employees will experience more variability in their 
earnings due to the volatility embedded in the variable 
remuneration formula. Junior employees should be shielded to 
a degree from the volatility embedded in variable remuneration 
by awarding them steady and consistent annual increases based 
on their individual performance.

The Group’s policies encourage behaviour that is in line with 
the risk management strategy. The entrenchment of employee 
ownership and the deferral of a significant portion of an 
employee’s remuneration ensures behaviour which is consistent 
with the risk profiles, rules and memorandum of incorporation 
of the entities being managed.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW PROCESS

Employees and managers must undertake a formal performance 
review annually (as a minimum) to assess past performance 

against objectives and to set new goals. The objectives set 
for employees should be ambitious, verifiable, relevant, 
quantitative and qualitative.

Proposed remuneration allocations to eligible individual 
employees are formulated and submitted to the Remco for 
consideration and approval. When considering and approving 
the final recommended allocation, the Remco will satisfy 
itself that the process that governs the assessment of an 
employee’s performance is robust and fair. This will inform 
the recommended allocation and take into account whether 
it meets the Group’s needs and strategic objectives, and that 
it is consistent with and promotes effective risk management.

The Remco may make adjustments to an individual’s final 
recommended remuneration, as it objectively considers 
appropriate. Upon approval of the respective individual 
remuneration by the Remco, payments are made in accordance 
with such allocations, but subject to the Group’s policy on when 
payments of approved and allocated variable remuneration 
are to be made.

Employee ownership of NAM equity contributes significantly to 
the culture and values of the Group. As such, it is desirable for 
employees to hold a meaningful equity stake in the company.

THE ORBAN STREET TRUST

The Orban Street Trust is a trust established for the 
administration of deferred remuneration and employee 
ownership schemes. It provides employees with the confidence 
that the allocations will be managed appropriately and that the 
underlying investments will be distributed to them in future 
years on condition that the relevant terms and conditions are 
met. The terms of the allocations do allow for forfeiture under 
specific circumstances. Details of this scheme are contained 
in note 13.3.2.

The trustees of the Orban Street Trust are independent of the 
executives and ensure that, once allocations have been made, 
the rules are strictly applied to all beneficiaries.

THE NAM STAFF SHARE SCHEME

The NAM Staff Share Scheme is a trust established to administer 
the share-based payment scheme of the Group. All employees 
are eligible to participate and are therefore beneficiaries of 
the scheme. Details of this scheme is contained in note 13.3.1.

The trustees of the NAM Staff Share Scheme are independent 
of the executives and ensure that options are allocated and 
the scheme administered strictly in line with the trust deed.

EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ 
REMUNERATION

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors of the Group receive an annual fixed fee 
and an attendance fee for Board and sub-committee meetings 
as approved by shareholders at the AGM. These fees are 
proposed and approved based on market related factors and the 
duties and responsibilities of each of the functions performed 
by the non-executive directors. Non-executive directors do not 
participate in any of the remuneration structures addressed in 
the remuneration policy document nor do they receive share 
options.

The detailed remuneration of the non-executive directors is 
disclosed in note 13.4.2.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are 
the key individuals responsible for the day-to-day activities 
of the Group and exercise general executive control over the 
business. The CEO and CFO have permanent employment 
contracts with a three-months’ notice period and a six-months 
paid restraint of trade.

The below table lists the key performance indicators (KPI’s) 
which have been agreed between the Board and these 
executives for the reporting period. The KPI’s of the CEO was 
assumed by the Acting-CEO at his resignation on 31 July 2020.
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OVERALL ASSESSMENT

The board is satisfied with the performance of the executives 
across all the above-mentioned key performance indicators. 
The remuneration of the CEO and CFO is directly linked to the 
performance of the Company and details thereof are included 
in note 13.2.

APPROVAL OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remco reviews the remuneration policy annually and may, 
from time to time, review and/or amend the provisions of this 
policy, subject to Board approval. The remuneration policy is 
also put forward for a non-binding advisory vote by shareholders 
at the AGM.

ii) Key CEO KPI’s

KPI Details Weighting

1. Strategy and values • Ensure that Group culture and 
values remain entrenched.

• Attract, retain and develop world-
class skilled team.

• Execution of Group strategy.
• Successful migration of back office 

platform.

40%

2. Operational excellence • Ensure that a Group has sound 
financial management system.

10%

3. Governance and 
corporate citizenship

• Build an appropriate risk and 
compliance culture and processes 
across the Group.

15%

4. Clients and 
Stakeholders

• Ensure that relationships with 
clients are maintained and 
strengthened.

• Increase the Group’s brand 
awareness.

• Ensure that clients are served with a 
world-class standard. 

• Transparent communications 
& sound relationship with all 
stakeholders.

35%

i) Key CFO KPI’     

KPI Details Weighting

1. Strategy and values • Align employees with the Group’s 
values and strengthen internal 
culture.

• Implement and maintain an 
effective financial operational 
model and controls.

• Execution of strategy in line with 
board mandate.

• Attract, retain and develop world-
class skills.

• Preparation of budgets which are 
in line with the Group’s strategy 
and measuring actual results to the 
budget on an ongoing basis.

30%

2. Operational excellence • Ensure the extraction of value from 
the new back-office administration 
platform.

• Maintain an effective client service 
function.

• Implement a proactive cost control 
culture within the Group.

• Maintain a high level of internal 
and external financial and 
operational reporting.

• Effective management of the 
Group’s tax affairs

• Maintain an effective back- office 
function including optimised cash 
management processes.

40%

3. Governance and 
corporate citizenship

• Ensure that appropriate corporate 
governance & effective risk 
management framework is 
implemented and maintained.

• Ensure that all Company Secretarial 
functions are executed effectively 
and in compliance with applicable 
legislation.

• Ensure compliance with all laws 
and regulations.

• Continuously monitor and resolve 
non-compliance with investment 
mandates and fund rules.

20%

4. Stakeholder 
engagement

• Ensure excellent  and relevant 
communication with shareholders, 
analysts, regulators, clients and 
Board of Directors.

10%
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE

RISK MANAGEMENT

Management is accountable to the Board for designing, 
implementing and monitoring the process of risk management 
and integrating it into the day-to-day activities of the Group. The 
Board is responsible for oversight of risk management, which 
includes forming its own opinion on the effectiveness of the risk 
management processes.

The Board sets the risk strategy policies, decides on the Group’s 
tolerance for risk and makes use of generally recognised risk 
management and internal control models and frameworks in 
doing so. The Board is responsible for ensuring that a systematic, 
documented assessment of the processes and the outcomes 
surrounding key risks is undertaken.

A risk register has been developed which includes the most 
significant risks that could impact the achievement of our 
objectives, and the mitigating actions implemented to reduce 
the likelihood and potential impact of these risks. Additional 
measures are also implemented to reduce the residual risk to 
an acceptable level. The risk register is reviewed on a quarterly 
basis and any updates are reviewed and discussed at the Audit 
and Risk Committee and Board meetings.

A quarterly incident report is prepared whereby risks that 
materialised and control breaches are reported to the Audit 
and Risk Committee and the Board, together with their impact 
(both financial and non-financial) and the relevant remedial and 
preventative action taken.

The Group’s risk objectives are to:
• Create awareness and understanding of risks at all levels 

of the Group by training employees and by management 
providing guidance.

• Integrate concerns for risk into the Group’s daily decision- 
making and implementation processes.

• Identify and manage risks within the risk appetite and risk 

tolerance parameters, which coincide with the Board’s 
strategy and objectives.

• Improve the Group’s ability to prevent, detect, correct, 
escalate and respond to critical risk issues by executing 
risk management plans, recommendations and monitoring 
effectively.

• Comply with appropriate risk management practices in terms 
of corporate governance guidelines in the Code.

The most significant risks facing the Group, together with the 
relevant mitigating controls, which we have implemented, have 
been identified and is depicted on the table to the right.

The Board can confirm that no matters have come to the 
attention of the Board to indicate that there has been any 
material breakdown in the risk management function, processes 
or systems during the year under review. Further, no incidences 
occurred which exceeded the Board’s risk tolerance levels during 
the period under review.

COMPLIANCE

The Chief Financial Officer is primarily responsible for monitoring 
compliance with all relevant laws, client mandates and other 
regulatory obligations which impact the Group. Regulatory 
compliance is achieved by, firstly, identifying and understanding 
the full universe of relevant laws and regulations and, secondly, 
by training employees and embedding compliance requirements 
in processes and controls.

The Chief Financial Officer manages an ongoing training and 
awareness programme. The programme includes induction 
training for new starters, the provision of required regulatory 
training and compliance broadcasts sent by email to all or 
impacted employees.

The Group did not experienced any regulatory penalties, sanctions 
or fines relating to any form of non-compliance.

Risk Management and mitigation

Outsourcing risk The Group has outsourced various parts of the business 
processes to external parties. All key relationships are 
managed through service level agreements which specify the 
requirements from third party service providers.
The internal and external auditors review audit reports 
generated by/or on behalf of third party service providers to 
enable us to detect any weaknesses or risks, which may have 
an impact on the Group. Regular service review meetings are 
held with the 3rd party service providers.

Client concentration 
risks

Due to the size of Namibia’s investor market we are at risk of 
being exposed to concentration risks.
We mitigate these risks by continuously reviewing and 
enhancing our product offering to ensure that we broaden our 
client base. Further, frequent client engagements are conducted 
to ensure that our service levels, as well as our product offering, 
meet their requirements.

Fraud and cyber 
security risk

Continual review and enhancement of business processes 
and operational controls are designed to identify and prevent 
fraudulent activity.
Cyber risk is holistically managed across people, processes 
and technology. This includes enforcing appropriate policies, 
ongoing employee awareness and employing technology to 
prevent and/or detect potential or actual threats to the security 
of our environment.

Regulatory risks Namibia’s regulatory landscape is rapidly changing to adapt to 
the local socio-political and economic environment. We also 
need to comply with international requirements.
We have adopted a pro-active approach to deal with regulatory 
changes. This includes continuous engagement with various 
regulators and stakeholders to provide guidance and input as 
may be necessary.

Data Protection 
risks

Protection of client data is a focus area. A number of initiatives 
have been implemented or are in the process of being 
implemented such as increasing staff awareness and updating 
our processes. In addition, subject matter experts have been 
engaged to test the effectiveness of the IT security at various 
intervals throughout the year.

Disaster recovery 
and business 
continuity risk

Comprehensive business continuity and disaster recovery plans 
are tested on an ongoing basis to ensure complete restoration 
of core business functions in the event of a disaster, within 
a defined recovery objective.  This includes user acceptance 
testing to verify recovered systems are fully operational.
The continuity and recovery plans include off-site retention of 
data backups and ability to access the information remotely 
across a secure virtual private network.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated and separate annual financial 
statements of Namibia Asset Management Limited, comprising 
the statements of financial position at 30 September 2020, 
the statements of comprehensive income, the statements of 
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which 
include a summary of significant accounting policies and the 
directors’ report in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies 
Act of Namibia.

The directors’ responsibility includes: designing, implementing 
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of these financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; 
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in 
the circumstances. The Board reviews the operation of the 
system of internal control primarily through the Audit and 
Risk Committee of the Group.

The directors’ responsibility also includes maintaining 
adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk 
management, as well as the preparation of the supplementary 
schedules included in these financial statements. The directors 
have made an assessment of the Group’s and Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern and there is no reason to 
believe the businesses will not be going concerns in the year 
ahead.

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the 
consolidated and separate annual financial statements of 
Namibia Asset Management Limited are fairly presented in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
and the Companies Act of Namibia.

U EISEB
Chief Financial Officer

ANTON PILLAY
Chairman and Acting-CEO

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated and separate annual financial statements 
of Namibia Asset Management Limited  for the year ended 30 
September 2020 set out on pages 35 to 76 were approved by the 
Board of directors on 14 December 2020 and are signed on its 
behalf by:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

\

OPINION 

We have audited the consolidated and separate annual financial 
statements of Namibia Asset Management Limited and its 
subsidiaries (‘the Group and Company”) set out on pages 35 to 
76, which comprise the directors’ report, the consolidated and 
separate statement of financial position as at 30 September 2020, 
and the consolidated and separate statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate 
statement of changes in equity and consolidated and separate 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to 
the consolidated and separate annual financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate annual financial 
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
and separate financial position of the Group and Company as at 
30 September 2020, and its consolidated and separate financial 
performance and consolidated and separate cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies 
Act of Namibia.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the consolidated and separate annual financial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group 
and Company in accordance with International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 

(including International Independence Standards) and other 
independence requirements applicable to performing audits of 
annual financial statements of the Group and Company and in 
Namibia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the ethical requirements applicable to performing 
audits of the Group and Company and in Namibia. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated and separate annual financial statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the consolidated and separate annual financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For 
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed 
the matter is provided in that context. 

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate 
annual financial statements section of our report, including 
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included 
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated and separate annual financial statements. The 
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures 
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis 
for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated and 
separate annual financial statements. 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NAMIBIA ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Registered Chartered Accountants and Auditors (Practice No:  9410)
Partners:  F.C. Kotzé;  J.J. Coetzee;  A.J. Engels;  B.S. Masule;  D. Van Wyk
A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue Recognition

Refer to Note 11, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Revenue comprises management fees, service fees and performance fees which amounted to N$ 99 721 719 (2019: N$ 83 330 820) 
(Group) and N$ 84 084 543 (2019: N$ 67 777 844) (Company). 

The above-mentioned revenues are calculated and recognised based on the terms of the underlying investment management 
contracts between the Group, the Company, their clients and/or the funds it manages. The revenues are derived from the values of the 
assets under management throughout the year as set out in the contracts and are calculated by management.

There are separate contracts entered into for the different revenue streams, set out with different terms and conditions per revenue 
stream per product, which include both local and international products. 

Examples of terms and conditions which impact the degree of revenue which can be earned include:
-  Tiered percentages in respect of management fees
-  Specific variables in respect of calculating performance fees which include:

• Performance Fee percentages and Performance Hurdles which vary 
• Fund Performance and Benchmark Performance which determine the percentages to be applied and if they can be applied
• Other variables impacting the final fee including the Relevant Performance Fee Assets and Measurement periods

-  Varying percentages in respect of service fees

As this was an initial audit it took significant time to gain an understanding of the terms of these contracts and the resultant revenue 
calculations in order to both determine and execute the appropriate audit strategy for the revenue account and included extensive 
discussions with management. 

Therefore, significant auditor attention was required by the audit team in understanding the various variables as set out in the revenue 
contracts in order to audit the measurement of revenue for the current year, as revenue is a key performance indicator for the Group 
and Company. As a result, revenue was considered a key audit matter in the current year.

We performed the following procedures, amongst others:

Obtained an understanding of the fee arrangements relating to the different revenue streams through inquiry of management and inspection 
of all contracts with customers which also involved extensive discussions with management to understand the terms and conditions of each 
contract. This included, understanding how the various variables as set out in the contracts were applied in calculating each revenue stream.  

Performed a walk-through over the three different revenue processes to confirm our understanding thereof.

Obtained management’s calculation and performed the following procedures:

-  Agreed the percentages used in the individual contracts to the percentages used within management’s calculation.

-  Recalculated all management fees, service fees and performance fees in accordance with the individual contracts which we compared to 
management’s calculation. In performing our recalculation, certain variables such as; Fund Performance, Benchmark Performance and 
Relevant Performance Fee Assets were obtained from a Service Organisation. In respect of the Service Organisation, we performed the 
following procedures:

• Inspected the controls as set out in the International Standards of Assurance Engagements 3402  reports received from the service 
organisation’s independent auditors for the first 6 months of the year  and assessed them against the risks identified relating to the data 
provided by the service organisation and determined whether we needed to perform any additional procedures. For the remaining 6 months 
of the year that was not covered by the ISAE 3402 report, we obtained a bridging report from the service organisation confirming that the 
control environment at the service organisation remained unchanged for the remaining period of the 2020 financial year.

• Obtained a Systems and Organisation Controls reliance memo from the Group auditors who tested the controls for the last 6 months of the 
year at the service organisation to confirm that we could rely on the information produced by the service organisation’s system.

• Assessed the independence and objectivity of the service organisation’s independent auditors.

-   Inspected all invoices issued to clients and agreed the amounts per the invoices to management’s calculation and subsequently agreed the 
invoices to the proof of payment. 

Examined and assessed the accounting policies and disclosures within the annual financial statements in terms of the recognition of revenue in 
compliance with IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers.

Registered Chartered Accountants and Auditors (Practice No:  9410)
Partners:  F.C. Kotzé;  J.J. Coetzee;  A.J. Engels;  B.S. Masule;  D. Van Wyk
A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue Recognition

Refer to Note 11, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Revenue comprises management fees, service fees and performance fees which amounted to N$ 99 721 719 (2019: N$ 83 330 820) 
(Group) and N$ 84 084 543 (2019: N$ 67 777 844) (Company). 

The above-mentioned revenues are calculated and recognised based on the terms of the underlying investment management 
contracts between the Group, the Company, their clients and/or the funds it manages. The revenues are derived from the values of the 
assets under management throughout the year as set out in the contracts and are calculated by management.

There are separate contracts entered into for the different revenue streams, set out with different terms and conditions per revenue 
stream per product, which include both local and international products. 

Examples of terms and conditions which impact the degree of revenue which can be earned include:
-  Tiered percentages in respect of management fees
-  Specific variables in respect of calculating performance fees which include:

• Performance Fee percentages and Performance Hurdles which vary 
• Fund Performance and Benchmark Performance which determine the percentages to be applied and if they can be applied
• Other variables impacting the final fee including the Relevant Performance Fee Assets and Measurement periods

-  Varying percentages in respect of service fees

As this was an initial audit it took significant time to gain an understanding of the terms of these contracts and the resultant revenue 
calculations in order to both determine and execute the appropriate audit strategy for the revenue account and included extensive 
discussions with management. 

Therefore, significant auditor attention was required by the audit team in understanding the various variables as set out in the revenue 
contracts in order to audit the measurement of revenue for the current year, as revenue is a key performance indicator for the Group 
and Company. As a result, revenue was considered a key audit matter in the current year.

We performed the following procedures, amongst others:

Obtained an understanding of the fee arrangements relating to the different revenue streams through inquiry of management and inspection 
of all contracts with customers which also involved extensive discussions with management to understand the terms and conditions of each 
contract. This included, understanding how the various variables as set out in the contracts were applied in calculating each revenue stream.  

Performed a walk-through over the three different revenue processes to confirm our understanding thereof.

Obtained management’s calculation and performed the following procedures:

-  Agreed the percentages used in the individual contracts to the percentages used within management’s calculation.

-  Recalculated all management fees, service fees and performance fees in accordance with the individual contracts which we compared to 
management’s calculation. In performing our recalculation, certain variables such as; Fund Performance, Benchmark Performance and 
Relevant Performance Fee Assets were obtained from a Service Organisation. In respect of the Service Organisation, we performed the 
following procedures:

• Inspected the controls as set out in the International Standards of Assurance Engagements 3402  reports received from the service 
organisation’s independent auditors for the first 6 months of the year  and assessed them against the risks identified relating to the data 
provided by the service organisation and determined whether we needed to perform any additional procedures. For the remaining 6 months 
of the year that was not covered by the ISAE 3402 report, we obtained a bridging report from the service organisation confirming that the 
control environment at the service organisation remained unchanged for the remaining period of the 2020 financial year.

• Obtained a Systems and Organisation Controls reliance memo from the Group auditors who tested the controls for the last 6 months of the 
year at the service organisation to confirm that we could rely on the information produced by the service organisation’s system.

• Assessed the independence and objectivity of the service organisation’s independent auditors.

-   Inspected all invoices issued to clients and agreed the amounts per the invoices to management’s calculation and subsequently agreed the 
invoices to the proof of payment. 

Examined and assessed the accounting policies and disclosures within the annual financial statements in terms of the recognition of revenue in 
compliance with IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers.

Registered Chartered Accountants and Auditors (Practice No:  9410)
Partners:  F.C. Kotzé;  J.J. Coetzee;  A.J. Engels;  B.S. Masule;  D. Van Wyk
A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the 
83-page document titled “Integrated Annual Report 2020”. Other 
information does not include the consolidated or the separate 
annual financial statements, directors’ report and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate annual financial 
statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate 
annual financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and 
separate annual financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated and separate annual financial statements 
of Namibia Asset Management Limited for the year ended 30 
September 2019, were audited by another auditor who expressed 
an unmodified opinion on those statements on 20 December 2019.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR CONSOLIDATED 
AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated and separate annual financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia, 
and for such internal control as the directors determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate annual financial 
statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group 
and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Group or Company or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CON-
SOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated and separate annual financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these consolidated and separate annual financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 

the consolidated and separate annual financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group and Company’s 
internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a going 
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concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the consolidated and separate annual 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group 
and Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of 
the consolidated and separate annual financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated 
and separate annual financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 
financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 
and separate annual financial statements. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group 
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. We also provide 
the directors with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats and 
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of 
the consolidated and separate annual financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Registered Chartered Accountants and Auditors (Practice No:  9410)
Partners:  F.C. Kotzé;  J.J. Coetzee;  A.J. Engels;  B.S. Masule;  D. Van Wyk
A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors of NAM are pleased to present their report to the 
shareholders for the financial year ended 30 September 2020.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

NAM is the only Namibian asset manager listed on the Namibian 
Stock Exchange. It is a pure fund management business which 
offers both individual and institutional investors access to local 
and global investment expertise across all asset classes.  Our 
clients include pension and provident funds, medical schemes, 
major banking and insurance groups. 

We focus solely on investment management; we are not 
involved in other areas of the value chain, such as investment 
platform administration and the provision of financial advice.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated and separate annual financial statements 
for the year ended 30 September 2020 have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
and the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia.

BUSINESS UPDATE

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic swiftly and severely 
impacted global financial markets, pushing the world economy 
into a recession. While governments and healthcare systems 
mobilised to prepare for the expected onslaught of infections 
and mitigate the humanitarian crisis, economies suffered as 
unemployment rates soared and businesses failed.

Even though the swift actions taken by the Namibian 
government went a long way to containing the spread of the 

virus, the economic consequences are still unknown and will 
only become clear in the months and years to come.

Despite these challenges NAM delivered credible results that 
reflects the robustness of the business.

From a performance perspective, we are pleased to see strong 
long-term returns generated across all our client portfolios and 
our ability to add value via active management is evident in: 
• Clients representing more than 91% of our total institutional 

assets have been invested with us for more than 10 years. 
Of these client assets, 77% have outperformed their 
benchmarks since inception.

• 100% of our institutional portfolios have delivered positive 
returns since inception.

NAM’s assets under management (AuM) as at 30 September 
2020 were down by 11.0% to N$17.0 billion (September 2019: 
N$19.1 billion). While we have seen a gradual recovery in 
the market value of the assets we manage over the past six 
months, some of our institutional clients rebalanced their 
portfolios during the period under review. As a result, we have 
experienced a 12.9% decline in our institutional AuM to N$14.8 
billion (September 2019: N$17.0 billion). Retail AuM increased 
marginally by 4.8% to N$2.2 billion (September 2019: N$2.1 
billion), due to modest inflows across our unit trust funds and 
market performance

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Having made enquiry of fellow directors and the Group’s 
auditors, each director confirms that to the best of his/her 
knowledge and belief, there is no information relevant to the 
preparation of their report of which the Group’s auditors are 

unaware. Each director also confirms that he/she has taken 
all the steps ought to have been taken as a director in order to 
make him or herself aware of the relevant audit information 
and to establish that the Group’s auditors are aware of the 
information.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

The directors, via the Audit and Risk Committee, specifically 
engaged with the external auditors with respect to the key 
audit matters that were raised in their report set out on pages 
31 to 32. The Audit and Risk Committee considered the work 
performed in addressing those matters and is satisfied that 
sufficient audit evidence was obtained by the external auditors 
to conclude that the matters had been dealt with appropriately. 

GOING CONCERN

We believe, after making enquiries that we consider to be 
appropriate, that the Company and the Group have adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future. For this reason we continue to adopt the 
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

SHAREHOLDING

Details of all shareholders, including interests held by directors 
in office as at 30 September 2020, are listed in the analysis of 
shareholders on page 10 of this report.

GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT 

The Group’s governance and risk management report is 
presented on pages 19 to 28. 
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DIRECTORS

The directors as at 30 September 2020 were:

DIRECTOR POSITION FIRST APPOINTED RE-ELECTED TO BE RE-ELECTED AT NEXT AGM

Anton Pillay* Chairman & Non-Executive 20-Feb-09 22-Feb-19 26-Feb-21

Gordon Young* Independent  Non-Executive 01-Sep-01 22-Feb-20 -

Aimee Rhoda* Non-Executive 01-Mar-13 22-Feb-19 26-Feb-21

Birgit Rossouw Independent  Non-Executive 30-Nov-06 23-Feb-18 26-Feb-21

Schalk Walters Independent  Non-Executive 01-Mar-12 21-Feb-20 -

Elize Angula Independent  Non-Executive 01-Mar-12 21-Feb-20 -

Tarah Shaanika Independent  Non-Executive 01-Apr-15 22-Feb-19 -

Ulrich Eiseb Chief Financial Officer 01-Oct-14 - -

*South African 

ULRICH EISEB
Chief Financial Officer

ANTON PILLAY
Chairman and Acting-CEO

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

After year-end the Board resolved to declare an ordinary dividend 
of  7 cents per share (2019: 8 cents per share). There is no special 
dividend declared for the period under review (2019: 1 cent per 
share).

The salient dates are as follows:
Last day to trade:  27 November 2020 
Securities start trading ex:  30 November 2020 
Record date:  04 December 2020 
Payment date:  11 December 2020

The Directors are not aware of any other material events, 
occurring between 30 September 2020 and the authorisation 
date of this report that would have an impact on these results. 

The COVID-19 impact appears to continue unabated creating 
ongoing uncertainty in financial markets. This is of particular 
significance to the financial results of the Group since fee 
revenues, and related variable costs, are underpinned by the 
market valuation of AuM. There is no certainty regarding future 
movements in the financial markets, and the full economic 
impact of the pandemic is unknown at this stage.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)

The AGM of the Company will be held at the Company’s offices 
at 1st Floor, Millenium House, Cnr of Robert Mugabe Avenue 
and DR AB May Street, Windhoek, on 26 February 2021. Refer to 
the notice of the AGM on page 78 of this publication for further 
details.

Eino Emvula has resigned as CEO of NAM to pursue other professional endeavors. The Board is pleased to announced the appointment of Tarah Shaanika as the new CEO, effective 4 
January 2021.
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STATEMENTS 
OF FINANCIAL 

POSITION

Notes    GROUP  COMPANY

 2020 2019  2020  2019
ASSETS  N$ N$  N$  N$

NON-CURRENT ASSETS  12 133 756  8 527 169  11 809 291  9 305 254 

Equipment 2  1 170 080  1 366 379  1 170 080  1 366 379 
Right-of-use asset 1.2  3 517 349  -    3 517 349  -   
Interest in subsidiary 3  6 000 000  6 000 000 
Marketable securities 4  6 000 000  5 000 000  -    -   
Deferred tax 5  1 446 327  2 160 790  1 121 862  1 938 875 

CURRENT ASSETS  74 914 678  52 113 382  60 882 051  36 798 795 

Marketable securities 4  9 038 884  7 698 819  -    -   
Trade and other receivables 6  29 423 106  12 486 440  27 674 695  10 605 007 
Amounts owing by Group companies 3  2 259 776  1 744 210 
Current tax asset 18.2  439 226  439 274  198 107  296 331 
Cash and cash equivalents 18.4  36 013 462  31 488 849  30 749 473  24 153 247 
TOTAL ASSETS  87 048 434  60 640 551  72 691 342  46 104 049 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS  31 420 102  32 778 234  24 171 236  27 400 295 

Ordinary share capital 7  1 554 792  1 542 292  2 000 000  2 000 000 
Share premium 7  2 251 860  2 251 860  2 053 960  2 053 960 
Reserve for own shares 8  (9 310 500)  (9 579 250)  -    -   
Share based payment reserve 13.3  3 149 875  3 788 704  3 149 875  3 788 704 

Fair value reserve  2 133 080  1 967 655  -    -   
Retained earnings  31 640 995  32 806 973  16 967 401  19 557 631 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  5 388 151  4 639 705  3 003 206  -   
Interest-bearing liabilities 13.4  2 384 945  4 639 705  -    -   
Lease liability 1.2  3 003 206  -    3 003 206  -   

CURRENT LIABILITIES  50 240 181  23 222 612  45 516 900  18 703 754 

Shareholders for dividend 18.3  340 151  253 439  340 151  253 439 
Lease liability - current portion 1.2  730 895  -  730 895  -
Trade and other payables 10  49 169 135  22 969 173  44 064 322  17 489 220 
Amount owing to Group companies 9  381 532  961 095 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  87 048 434  60 640 551  72 691 342  46 104 049 

AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2020
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STATEMENTS OF 
COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Notes  GROUP  COMPANY

 2020  2019  2020  2019
 N$  N$  N$  N$

Revenue 11  99 721 719  83 330 820  84 084 543  67 777 844 

Other income* 12  1 217 528  1 670 847  865 659  1 278 761 

Operating expenditure 13  (78 852 257)  (62 714 145)  (68 143 257)  (52 306 555) 

Operating profit  22 086 990  22 287 522  16 806 945  16 750 050 

Net finance income*  1 044 581  1 790 588  4 768 747  5 463 774 

Finance income 14  1 561 157  2 173 381  903 212  1 263 774 
Dividend income - -  4 200 000  4 200 000
Finance cost 15  (516 576)  ( 382 793)  (334 465)  - 

Profit before tax  23 131 571  24 078 110  21 575 692  22 213 824 

Taxation 16  (7 903 906)  (7 501 430)  (6 165 922)  (5 608 083) 

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders  15 227 665  16 576 680  15 409 770  16 605 741 

Other comprehensive income

Net change in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI (not subject to income tax)  165 425  113 895  -    - 

Other comprehensive income for the year  165 425  113 895  -    - 

Total comprehensive income attributable to equity holders  15 393 090  16 690 575  15 409 770  16 605 741 

All comprehensive income is attributable to equity holders of the Group.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (cents)

 - Basic 17  9,79 10,75  7,70 8,30
 - Diluted 17  9,70 10,48  7,70 8,30

*Comparative amounts have been reclassified for improved disclosure purposes. The reclassification did not have any impact on the profit reported on the SOCI nor on the SOCIE. Dividend income has also been presented as a 
separate line item on the face of the SOCI.
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Notes
Ordinary 

share capital 
N$

Share
premium

N$

Retained
earnings

N$

Share based
payment reserve

N$

Reserve for
own shares

N$

Fair value
reserve

N$
Total 

N$
GROUP
Balance at 1 October 2018  1 542 292  2 251 860  29 411 486  3 263 009  (9 579 250)  1 853 760  28 743 157 

Comprehensive income for the year  -    -    16 576 680  -    -    113 895  16 690 575 
Profit for the year  -    -    16 576 680  -    -    -    16 576 680 
Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    -    113 895  113 895 

Transactions with owners recorded directly to equity  -    -    (13 181 193)  525 695  -    -    (12 655 498) 
Dividend paid to equity holders  -    -    (13 181 193)  -    -    -    (13 181 193) 
Share based payments 13.3  -    -    -    525 695  -    -    525 695 

Balance at 30 September 2019  1 542 292  2 251 860  32 806 973  3 788 704  (9 579 250)  1 967 655  32 778 234 

Comprehensive income for the year  -    -    15 227 665  -    -    165 425  15 393 090 
Profit for the year  -    -    15 227 665  -    -    -    15 227 665 
Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    -    165 425  165 425 

Transactions with owners recorded directly to equity  12 500  -    (16 393 643)  (638 829)  268 750  -    (16 751 222) 

Dividend paid to equity holders  -    -    (16 393 643)  -    -    -    (16 393 643) 

Share based payments 13.3  -    -    -    (638 829)  -    -    (638 829) 

Staff share options exercised  12 500  -    -    -    268 750  -    281 250 

Balance at 30 September 2020  1 554 792  2 251 860  31 640 995  3 149 875  (9 310 500)  2 133 080  31 420 102 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020
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Notes
Ordinary 

share capital 
N$

Share
premium

N$

Retained
earnings

N$

Share based
payment reserve

N$
Total 

N$
COMPANY

Balance at 1 October 2018  2 000 000  2 053 960  17 951 890  3 263 009  25 268 859 

Comprehensive income for the year  -    -    16 605 741  -    16 605 741 
Profit for the year  -    -    16 605 741  -    16 605 741 
Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    -   

Transactions with owners recorded directly to equity  -    -    (15 000 000)  525 695  (14 474 305) 
Share-based payments 13.3  -    -    -    525 695  525 695 
Dividend paid to equity holders  -    -    (15 000 000)  -    (15 000 000) 

Balance at 30 September 2019  2 000 000  2 053 960  19 557 631  3 788 704  27 400 295 

Comprehensive income for the year  -    -    15 409 770  -    15 409 770 
Profit for the year  -    -    15 409 770  -    15 409 770 
Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    -   

Transactions with owners recorded directly to equity 13.3  -    -    (18 000 000)  (638 829)  (18 638 829) 
Share-based payments  -    -    -    (638 829)  (638 829) 

Dividend paid to equity holders  -    -    (18 000 000)  -    (18 000 000) 

Balance at 30 September 2020  2 000 000  2 053 960  16 967 401  3 149 875  24 171 236 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020
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Notes  GROUP                                         COMPANY
 

2020 2019 2020 2019
N$ N$ N$ N$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers  83 670 596  84 992 286  67 880 514  69 383 850 
Cash paid to suppliers and employees  (52 069 355)  (54 799 620)  (40 985 215)  (45 095 047) 
Cash generated from operating activities 18.1  31 601 241  30 192 666  26 895 299  24 288 803 
Finance income received  1 768 621  2 626 798  903 212  1 705 713 
Dividends received  -  -  4 200 000  4 200 000 
Income taxes paid 18.2  (7 189 398)  (7 310 016)  (5 250 685)  (5 519 178) 
Dividends paid 18.3  (16 306 931)  (13 100 777)  (17 913 288)  (14 919 584) 

Net cash flows from operating activities  9 873 533  12 408 671  8 834 538  9 755 754 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisitions of equipment to maintain operations 2  (146 133)  (1 238 391)  (146 133)  (1 238 391) 
Marketable securities - withdrawals  1 040 288  1 569 586  -  - 
Marketable securities (Invesments)  (3 090 404)  (2 471 468)  -  - 

Net cash flows from investing activities  (2 196 249)  (2 140 273)  (146 133)  (1 238 391) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings 13.4  (2 072 409)  (1 349 776) 
Interest paid on interest bearing borrowings 13.4  (364 462)  (429 242) 
Repayment of lease liability - Capital 1.2  (662 585)  -  (662 585) 
Repayment of lease liability - Interest 1.2  (334 465)  -  (334 465) 
Proceeds from staff share options exercised  281 250  -  -  - 
Receipts from Group companies 9  -  -  -  386 886
Payments to Group companies 9  -  -  (1 095 129)  (756 301) 

Net cash flows from financing activities  (3 152 671)  (1 779 018)  (2 092 179)  (369 415) 

NET MOVEMENT IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  4 524 613  8 489 380  6 596 226  8 147 948 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  31 488 849  22 999 469  24 153 247  16 005 299 
 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 18.4  36 013 462  31 488 849  30 749 473  24 153 247 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 REPORTING ENTITY

Namibia Asset Management Limited, (the Company), is a 
Company domiciled in Namibia (Registration number: 97/397). 
The consolidated financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended 30 September 2020 comprise the Company, 
its subsidiary and other entities controlled by the Company, 
together referred to as the “Group”.

There are no differences between the accounting policies of 
the Group and its subsidiaries. Where reference is made to the 
Group it should apply to the Company as the context requires.

1.2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and in the manner required by the Namibian 
Companies Act 28 of 2004.

We have performed various forecasts and projections, and 
coupled with our business continuity plans, the Group continues 
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial 
statements.

The consolidated and separate financial statements were 
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 December 
2020.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation 
of these consolidated and the company’s separate annual 

financial statements are set out below. These policies have 
been consistently applied to all years presented in relation to 
the Group’s consolidated and the company’s separate annual 
financial statements except for the adoption of:

IFRS 16 – Leases

IFRS 16 results in almost all leases being recognised on the 
statement of financial position by lessees, as the distinction 
between operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new 
standard, an asset (the right-to-use leased item) and a financial 
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are 
short-term and low-value leases. The Group has adopted IFRS 16 
– Leases from 01 October 2019 using the modified retrospective 
approach and therefore comparative information has not been 
restated and is presented under IAS 17. The Group did not 
reassess the definition of a lease on its current lease contracts 
but applied the requirements of IFRS 16 to all leases recognised 
as operating leases previously under IAS 17.

In adopting the IFRS 16 for the first time the Group has used 
the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

• Excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the 
right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

The Group’s office premises rental contract, which commenced 
on 01 October 2019, represents the sole right-of-use asset and 
leased liability at reporting date. The previous contract has been 
terminated on 30 September 2019. The below table provides a 
reconciliation of the opening balance to closing balance of the 
right-of-use asset and lease liability as at reporting date: 

Right-of-use asset Lease liability
N$ N$

Opening Balance as at 01 October 2019 - -

Additions on 01 October 2019 4 396 686 (4 396 686)

Interest - (334 465)

Depreciation (879 337) -

Repayments - 997 050

Closing Balance as at 30 September 2020 3 517 349 (3 734 101)

The lease liability as at 01 October 2019 based on the total 
lease payments over the lease term was determined as follows:

Right-of-use asset N$

Operating lease payments 5 432 817

Weighted average incremental borrowing rate 9%

Discounted operating lease payments – 01 October 2019 4 396 686

Lease liability – 01 October 2019 4 396 686

Lease liability N$

Non-current portion 3 003 206

Current portion 730 895

Total as at 30 September 2020 3 734 101

No other new or amended IFRS standards became effective for 
the year ended 30 September 2020 that impacted the Group’s 
reported earnings, financial position, or accounting policies.
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1.3 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition 
method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on which 
control is transferred to the Group. A business is defined as 
an integrated set of activities and assets that are capable of 
being conducted and managed for the purposes of providing 
a return. It is presumed that a business exists if goodwill is 
present in the acquired set of assets and activities. Evidence to 
the contrary would be needed to overcome this presumption.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:
• The fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
• The recognised amount of any non-controlling interests 

in the acquiree; plus
• If the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair 

value of the pre-existing equity interest in the acquiree; less
• The net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the 

identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related 
to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts 
generally are recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of 
debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in connection 
with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair 
value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration 
is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured, and settlement 
is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes 
in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised 
in profit or loss.

When  share-based  payment awards   (replacement   awards) 
are required to be exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s 

employees (acquiree’s awards) and relate to past services, then 
all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s  replacement 
awards   is included in measuring the consideration transferred 
in the business combination. This determination is based on 
the market- based value of the replacement awards compared 
with the market- based value of the acquiree’s awards and the 
extent to which the replacement awards relate to past and/
or future services.

Subsidiaries

The consolidated annual financial statements include the 
assets, liabilities and results of the operations of the holding 
company and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are all companies and structured entities over 
which the Group has control. The Group has control over 
an investee when the Group is exposed, or has the rights to, 
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and 
has the  ability  to  affect those returns through its power over 
the investee.

When assessing whether control exists the Group considers 
all existing substantive rights that result in the current ability 
to direct relevant activities. Subsidiaries are consolidated from 
the date on which the Group acquires effective control.

Consolidation is discontinued from the date that control over 
the subsidiary ceases.

Consolidated structured entities

The Group consolidates a structured entity when the 
substance of the relationship between the Group and the 
structured entity indicates that the Group controls the 
structured entity.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-Group balances, and any unrealised income and expenses 
arising from intra-Group transactions, are eliminated in 
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised 

losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but 
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Loss of control

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets 
and liabilities of the subsidiary/structured entity, any non- 
controlling interests and other components of equity related 
to the subsidiary/structured entity. Any surplus or deficit 
arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss. 
Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

1.4 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on 
the historical or amortised cost basis except for the following 
items in the Statement of Financial Position:
• Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 

are measured at fair value;
• Financial assets designated as fair value through other 

comprehensive income is measured at fair value; and
• Share-based payments are measured at fair value upon 

initial recognition.

1.5 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These consolidated and separate financial statements are 
presented in Namibia Dollar, which is the functional currency 
of all the entities in the Group. All figures disclosed in this 
publication of the annual financial statements are rounded 
to the nearest dollar.

1.6  KEY MANAGEMENT JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND 
ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with 
IFRS, requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

The financial year was marked by the impact of the COVID-19 
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1.6  KEY MANAGEMENT JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND 
ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)

pandemic. As was the case with the rest of the world, Namibia 
implemented a hard lockdown, which had a significant 
impact on all Namibians. Even though this swift action by the 
government went a long way to containing the spread of the 
virus, the economic consequences are still unknown and will only 
become clear in the months and years to come. The pandemic 
continues to create uncertainty in the financial markets and this 
is of particular significance to the financial results of the Group 
since revenue, and related variable costs are underpinned by the 
market valuation of assets under management. 

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and various other factors that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values 
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The 
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

There were no key judgements made in applying accounting 
policies that have a significant impact on the financial 
statements.

There are no assumptions or estimation uncertainty as at 
30 September 2020 that have a risk of resulting in a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.

1.7 FOREIGN CURRENCY

Foreign currency transactions

The Group deals occasionally with South African counterparts 
and converts to Namibia Dollar at the prescribed conversion 
rate at the dates of transactions. The Namibia Dollar and the 
South African Rand are pegged at 1:1. The Group does not have 
any significant foreign currency transactions.

1.8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through 
profit or loss (FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition 
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash f low 
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing 
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain 
a significant financing component or for which the Group has 
applied the practical expedient, the group initially measures a 
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial 
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs. Trade receivables that 
do not contain a significant financing component or for which 
the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at 
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured 
at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 
‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal 
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI 
test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers 
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash 
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows 
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the 
financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery 
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or 
convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are 
recognised on the trade date.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are 
classified in three categories:

• Financial assets at amortised cost;
• Financial assets at FVOCI;
• Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both 
of the following conditions are met:
• The financial asset is held within a business model with 

the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows; and

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are initially measured at fair 
value and subsequently measured using the effective interest 
rate (EIR) method and are subject to impairment testing. Gains 
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets held at amortised cost comprise cash and 
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and amounts 
due to Group companies. Cash and cash equivalents comprise 
balances held with banks as well as short-term investments of 
excess cash in the money-market and income unit trust funds. 

Financial assets designated at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify 
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments 
designated at FVOCI when they meet the definition of equity 
under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation, and are 
not held for trading. The classification is determined on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled 
to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in 
the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has 
been established, except when the Group benefits from such 
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial   

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0

4 4   /   A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S



1.8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets designated at FVOCI (Continued)

asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity 
instruments designated at FVOCI are not subject to impairment 
assessment.

The Group classifies marketable securities – statutory 
investments under this category.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for 
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at 
fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily 
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are 
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose 
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets with 
cash flows that are not SPPI, and not designated as FVOCI, are 
classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business 
model.

Financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in the statement of 
financial position at fair value with net changes in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit and 
loss includes marketable securities – additional investments.

Fair Value hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or, 
in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous 
market for the asset or liability.

Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy 

based on the requirements of IFRS 13: ‘Fair Value Measurement’:
• Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities.
• Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 

1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as closing prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from closing 
prices). Most Level 2 investments are deposits held with 
financial institutions. 

• Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 
observable market data (significant unobservable inputs).

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial 
asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily 
de-recognised when:
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 

or
• The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows 

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 
received cash flows in full without a material delay to a third 
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the 
group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards 
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows 
from an asset or has entered a pass-through arrangement, it 
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and 
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to 
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing 
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an 
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated 
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over 
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of 

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses the expected credit losses associated with 
its financial assets carried at amortised cost, on a forward-
looking basis. The impairment methodology applied depends 
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach 
permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to 
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The 
Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether the 
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly 
since initial recognition. Where there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition the Group 
measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an 
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when 
contractual payments are past due, which is determined as 
being more than 90 days outstanding. However, in certain 
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in 
default when internal or external information indicates that 
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual 
amounts in full before taking into account any credit 
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written 
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the 
contractual cash flows.

The Group recognises in profit or loss, as an impairment gain 
or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is 
required to adjust the loss allowance at the end of the reporting 
period.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as 
financial liabilities at FVTPL or amortised cost.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, 
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1.8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other 
payables, interest bearing liabilities, lease liabilities and 
shareholders for dividends. 

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on 
the group’s business model for managing the asset and the 
cash flow characteristics of the asset. The group classifies its 
debt instruments at amortised cost since they are held for 
collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest. Interest 
income from these financial assets is recognised using the 
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on de-
recognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented 
in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains 
and losses. Impairment losses are presented as a separate line 
item in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR 
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when 
the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance 
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under 
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount 
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position 
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future 
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy 
of the company or the counter party.

1.9 EQUIPMENT

1.9.1 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT AND FURNITURE

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of equipment are measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Cost 
includes the cost of replacing part of an existing equipment 
at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are 
met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an item 
of equipment.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the 
related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

(ii) Subsequent costs

The Group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of 
equipment the cost of replacing part of such an item when 
that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic 
benefits embodied in the item will flow to the Group and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The costs of the 
day- to-day servicing of equipment are recognised in profit or 
loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual 
value. Significant components of individual assets are assessed 
and if a component has a useful life that is different from 
the remainder of the assets, that component is depreciated 
separately.

Items of equipment are depreciated from the date that they are 
installed and are available for use in the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item 
of equipment. The estimated useful lives for the current and 
comparative periods are as follows:
• Furniture and equipment 5 years
• Computer equipment 3 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reassessed at the reporting date, and adjusted if appropriate.

(iv) Disposals

The gain or loss on disposal on an item of equipment is 
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with 
the carrying amount of the equipment and is recognised within 
other income/other expenses in profit or loss.
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1.9 EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

1.9.2 LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

Leasehold improvements are all improvements made to 
property which the Group leases as lessee under an operating 
lease in order to prepare the property for its intended use and 
from which the Group is expected to benefit for more than 
one year. Leasehold improvements are capitalised as part of 
equipment. The improvements are depreciated over the shorter 
of the lease-term or its useful life.

1.10 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which 
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value 
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing 
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating 
units). Non-financial assets that suffered impairment are 
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each 
reporting date.

1.11 LEASES

1.11.1  IFRS 16 – Leases 

The policy is applied to contracts entered into on or after 01 
October 2019.

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a 
lease, at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, 
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use 
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for a 
consideration. 

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding 
lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it 

is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with 
a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets 
(such as small items of office furniture). For these leases, the 
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, unless another 
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in 
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain 
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease 
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security 
interest in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased 
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Initial recognition

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of 
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement 
date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If 
this rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee uses its 
incremental borrowing rate. 

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the 
consolidated statement of financial position. 

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the 
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before 
the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and 
any initial direct costs.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the 
consolidated statement of financial position. 

Subsequent measurement

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the 
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using 
the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying 
amount to reflect the lease payments made. The Group 
remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding 
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:
• The lease term has changed, in which case the lease liability 

is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments 
using a revised discount rate.

• The lease payments change due to changes in an index 
or rate, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by 
discounting the revised lease payments using an unchanged 
discount rate. 

• A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is 
not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the 
lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the 
modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments 
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the 
modification. 

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the 
financial year.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. They are 
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful 
life of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the 
underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that 
the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related 
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the 
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement 
date of the lease. 

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use 
asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment 
loss.

1.12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

The Company measures its investment in subsidiaries at cost 
less impairments, if any.

1.13 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(i) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs 
directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are 
recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
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1.13 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(ii) Dividends

Ordinary dividends are recognised as a liability with a 
corresponding decrease in retained earnings in the period in 
which they are declared.

(iii)  Repurchase, disposal and reissue of share capital (trea sury 
shares)

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the 
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly 
attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a 
deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as 
treasury shares and are presented in reserve for own shares. 
When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the 
amount received is recognised as an increase in equity, and the 
resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented in 
share premium.

(iv) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change 
in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income until the assets are de-recognised or 
impaired. 

(v) Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve comprises the accumulation 
of equity-settled share-based payment costs as the related 
service conditions are being met.

1.14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Defined contribution plans

 A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit 
plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a 
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation 

to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined 
contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee 
benefit expense in profit or loss as the related service is 
provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to 
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments 
is available.

(ii) Share-based payment transactions

The grant-date fair value for share-based payment awards 
granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, 
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that 
the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. 
The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect 
the number of awards for which the related service and non-
market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that 
the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the 
number of awards that meet the related service and non-market 
performance conditions at the vesting date. For share based 
payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date 
fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect 
such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between 
expected and actual outcomes.

(iii) Short-term benefits

Short-term benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted 
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A 
liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under 
short term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a 
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a 
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation 
can be estimated reliably.

1.15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue 
arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue 
be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration 
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring goods or services to a customer.

Revenue from fund management activities comprises fund 
management fees charged to clients based on a percentage of 
assets under management as per underlying client mandates. 
The Group views all revenue from contracts with customers 
to be linked to this single performance obligation. Revenue 
is measured at the amount of the transaction price which is 
the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to 
be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods and 
services to a customer.

Fund management fees are recognised over time in profit or loss 
as the services are rendered and the performance obligation is 
satisfied. Performance fees are included in fund management 
fees and are also recognised over time however represent 
variable consideration and are only recognised when the Group 
is unconditionally entitled to the revenue and no contingency 
with respect to future performance exists. The Group earns a 
performance fee if certain performance thresholds and other 
criteria are met.

The management fees are deducted directly from the assets 
under the management of the Group based on the agreed time 
frames reflected in the contracts with customers.

Revenue is disaggregated between fees on segregated and unit 
trust asset management activities and this disaggregation 
provides the most appropriate depiction of how economic 
factors might impact the nature, amount, timing and 
uncertainty of the Group’s revenue.

1.16 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Finance income comprises interest income on excess cash 
invested in unit trust funds, interest earned on cash held in 
call and current bank accounts as well as dividends income 
on investments in subsidiary. Interest income is recognised as 
it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method. 
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date the 
Company’s right to receive payments is established which in 
the case of quoted securities is the declaration date.
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1.16 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS (CONTINUED)

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and 
leases. It is our policy to record interest paid in respect of interest-
bearing liabilities as part of financing activities.

1.17 INCOME TAX

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income 
tax expense is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent 
that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised 
directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income 
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect 
of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 
Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary 
differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects 
neither accounting nor taxable profit upon initial recognition and 
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries 
if both the following conditions are satisfied:
a)  The parent, investor, joint venturer or joint operator is able to 

control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference; 
and

b) it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse 
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be 
applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based 
on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities 
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle 
current tax liabilities and assets, on a net basis or their tax assets 
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused 
tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that 
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined 
based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. 
If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to 
recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, 
adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are 
considered, based on the business plans for individual subsidiaries 
in the Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting 
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are 
reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

1.18 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group presents basic, diluted and headline earnings per 
share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated 
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by 
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which 
comprise convertible notes and share options granted to 
employees. Headline EPS (calculated in terms of JSE’s HEPS 
circular 1/2019) is determined by adjusting the profit or 
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding with separately 
identifiable re-measurements net of related taxes.

1.19 SEGMENT REPORTING

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages 
in business activities from which it may earn revenues and 
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to 
transactions with any of the Group’s other components.

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised 
in one operating segment, asset management. This division is 
the basis on which the Group reports all its results. Therefore,   
a separate Segment Report is not prepared. All the Group’s 
operations are located in Namibia.

The chief operating decision maker is the Acting Chief Executive 
Officer of the Group.

1.20 OTHER INCOME

Other income comprises income distributions on unit trust 
investments, unrealised market value gains or loss on instruments 
classified at FVOCI, administrative fees as well trailer fees 
(commission).

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using 
the effective interest method.

Unrealised market value gains or loss are determine with reference 
to the closing net asset value of the unit trust fund in which the 
investment is held and trailer fees are recognised in profit or loss 
on the date the entity’s right to receive payment is established.

1.21 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures 
require the determination of fair value, for financial assets 
and liabilities. When applicable, further information about the 
assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the 
notes specific to that asset or liability.

1.22 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Directors are not aware of any material events, occurring 
between 30 September 2020 and the authorisation date of the 
announcement that would have an impact on these results. 

The COVID-19 impact appears to continue unabated creating 
ongoing uncertainty in financial markets. This is of particular 
significance to the financial results of the Group since fee 
revenues, and related variable costs, are underpinned by the 
market valuation of AUM. There is no certainty regarding future 
movements in the financial markets, and the full economic impact 
of the pandemic is unknown at this stage. 

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

2. EQUIPMENT

Computer 
Equipment

N$ 

Furniture &
Equipment

N$

Leasehold
Improvements

N$
Total 

N$

Group and company 2020

Cost
Opening balance  825 916  693 601  1 238 391  2 757 908 

Additions  46 894  10 748  88 491  146 133 

Closing balance  872 810  704 349  1 326 882  2 904 041 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Opening balance  803 103  588 426  -  1 391 529 

Depreciation  39 996  45 416  257 020  342 432 

Closing balance  843 099  633 842  257 020  1 733 961 

Carrying amount

At end of the year  29 711  70 507  1 069 862  1 170 080 

At beginning of the year  22 813  105 175  1 238 391  1 366 379 

Computer 
Equipment

N$ 

Furniture &
Equipment

N$

Leasehold
Improvements

N$
Total 

N$
Group and company 2019

Cost
Opening balance  825 916  738 029  808 455  2 372 400 
Additions  -  -  1 238 391  1 238 391 
Write-offs  -  (44 428)  (808 455)  (852 883) 

Closing balance  825 916  693 601  1 238 391  2 757 908 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Opening balance  760 528  539 808  317 394  1 617 730 
Depreciation  42 575  93 046  491 061  626 682 
Write-offs  -  (44 428) (808 455)  (852 883) 

Closing balance  803 103  588 426  -  1 391 529 

Carrying amount

At end of the year  22 813  105 175  1 238 391  1 366 379 

At beginning of the year  65 388  198 221  491 061  754 670 

No equipment was pledged as security for liabilities and no contractual obligations for the acquisition of equipment at year-end. The cost of fully depreciated equipment still in use amounted 
to N$1.2 million as at 30 September 2020 (2019: N$1.2 million).

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

3. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARY
COMPANY

2020
N$

2019
N$

Shares

Opening Balance  6 000 000  6 000 000 

Closing Balance  6 000 000  6 000 000 

Consisting of:

Shares at cost  6 574 536  6 574 536 
Cumulative impairment (impaired in terms of IAS 36)  (574 536)  (574 536) 

 6 000 000  6 000 000 

Intercompany current accounts (interest-free)

Orban Street Trust  1 105 628  663 544 
NAM Staff Share Trust  1 154 148  1 080 666 

Amounts owing by Group companies  2 259 776  1 744 210 

Intercompany loans are repayable on demand and carry no interest. Refer to note 20.2 for a listing of our Group entities, including the ownership structures. There are no non-controlling 
shareholders and the Group exercises full control over these entities as envisaged under IFRS 10. 

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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GROUP

4. MARKETABLE SECURITIES
2020

N$
2019

N$

Statutory Investments  6 000 000  5 000 000 
Additional Investments  9 038 884  7 698 819 

 15 038 884  12 698 819 

Market Value  15 038 884  12 698 819 

Classified as:
Current  9 038 884  7 698 819 
Non-current  6 000 000  5 000 000 

 15 038 884  12 698 819 

Net gains/(loss) on marketable securities held at FVTPL  124 524  295 604 

Net gains / (loss) on financial assets held at FVOCI  165 425  113 895 

The statutory investments relate to the minimum investment a Unit Trust Manager is required to make in its own Unit Trust as per the Unit Trust Control Act of 1981. They are classified as FVOCI 
financial assets and are shown at their fair value which is based on actual unit prices at year end. Fair value gains or losses will never be reclassified to profit or loss. The additional investments 
are dividends declared and interest accrued by the unit trust funds which have been reinvested in these funds.

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD IN:

NAM Coronation 
Balanced 

Defensive Fund 
(A-class)

Nam Coronation 
Strategic Income 

Fund (A - class)

Nam Coronation 
Strategic Income 

Fund (P - class)

Nam Coronation 
Capital Plus Fund 

(C - class)

Nam Coronation 
Balanced Plus 

Fund (A - class)

Nam Coronation 
Money Market 

Fund (P - class)

NAM Coronation 
Optimum Growth 

Fund (A - class)

NAM Coronation 
Optimum Growth 

Fund (P - class)

NAM Coronation 
Optimum Growth 

Fund (Z - class)

Nam Coronation 
Balanced Plus 

Fund (B - class)

Coronation 
Optimum  

Growth Fund 
(P-class)

No. of units  53 280  1 649 413  88 393  1 323 985  1 205 782  1 000 000  16 497  457  322  15 985  13 966 

Price per unit - cents  4 460.6  117.43  117.47  179.00  168.89  100.00  15 176.48  15 211.66  15 212.85  169  15 221 

Total N$  2 376 811  1 929 813  103 420  2 356 693  2 037 772  1 000 000  2 503 537  69 449  49 023  2 431 805  2 124 697 

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

5. DEFERRED TAX

GROUP 
2020

N$
2019

N$

COMPANY 
2020

N$
2019

N$

Opening balance  2 160 790  2 315 688  1 938 875  1 980 782 
Temporary differences  (714 463)   (154 898)   (817 013)   (41 907)  

Closing balance  1 446 327  2 160 790  1 121 862  1 938 875 

The balance of deferred tax is made up as follows:

Deferred tax liability
Equipment  (128 123)  (161 434)  (128 123)  (161 434) 
Prepayments  (40 166)  -  (40 166)  - 
IFRS 16 - Leases  69 361  -  69 361  - 

 (98 928)  (161 434)  (98 928)  (161 434) 

Deferred tax assets recognised
Liability for leave pay  87 290  72 772  66 558  65 580 
Bonus liability  596 845  551 519  414 499  484 229 
Trademark  512 000  583 822  512 000  583 822 
Long term incentive provision  320 000  422 177  227 733  332 985 
Share-based payments  -  633 693  -  633 693 
Restraint of trade payments  29 120  58 241 -  - 

 1 545 255  2 322 224  1 220 790  2 100 309 

Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. No unrecognised deferred tax assets 
exist.

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

GROUP COMPANY

2020 2019 2020 2019
N$ N$ N$ N$

6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables  28 832 317  11 240 954  27 251 040  9 606 221 
Prepayments  164 549  414 325  148 524  398 300 
Other receivables  426 240  831 161  275 131  600 486 

 29 423 106  12 486 440  27 674 695  10 605 007 

7. ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Authorised - Ordinary shares

300 000 000 shares of 1c each  3 000 000  3 000 000  3 000 000  3 000 000 

Issued - Ordinary shares
200 000 000 shares of 1c each  2 000 000  2 000 000  2 000 000  2 000 000

Share premium
Opening and closing balance  2 251 860  2 251 860  2 053 960  2 053 960 

Reserve for own shares
Shares held by the NAM Staff Share Scheme ("scheme")
(Refer to note 8)  (25 200)  (37 700)  -  - 
Shares held by The Orban Street Trust ("OST") (Refer to note 8)  (420 008)  (420 008)  -  - 

Total share capital including share premium  3 806 652  3 794 152  4 053 960  4 053 960 

        
The unissued shares are under the control of the directors until the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 26 February 2021. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive 
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share on meetings of the Company.

Trade receivables are deducted directly from the assets under our management soon after month-end or quarter-end. ECL’s can only be considered when the carrying value of the assets under 
management is below the amount due from the clients. No such instances were noted and thus no ECL’s have been raised.

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

8. RESERVE FOR OWN SHARES
On initial recognition or a change of shares held by the scheme or OST, share capital is adjusted by the par value in the change in shares, while the remainder of the strike price of the option/
treasure share is recognised as part of the reserve for own shares. All subsequent changes in share price are recognised in the reserve for own shares. On 30 September 2020, the scheme owned 
2 520 000 shares (2019: 3 770 000) whereas OST had 42 000 800 shares (2019: 42 000 800).

GROUP COMPANY
2020 2019 2020 2019

N$ N$ N$ N$
Share capital

Total number of shares in issue at par value of 1 cent 1 542 292 1 542 292  2 000 000  2 000 000 
Change in shares owned by OST during the year 12 500 -  -  -   

1 554 792 1 542 292  2 000 000  2 000 000 

Consisting of:

Issued Share Capital  2 000 000  2 000 000  2 000 000  2 000 000 
Cumulative par value of shares held by the scheme at 
beginning of year

 (37 700)  (37 700)  -  -   

Par value of options exercised during the current year 12 500  -  -  -   
Cumulative par value of shares held by OST at beginning of 
year

 (420 008)  (420 008) - -

Share capital at end of year  1 554 792  1 542 292  2 000 000  2 000 000 

Reserve for own shares

Owned by the schemes at beginning of the financial year  9 579 250  9 579 250 
Change in shares owned by the scheme and OST during the 
year

 (268 750)  - 

Owned by the schemes at end of the financial year  9 310 500  9 579 250 

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

11. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Revenue comprises the following:
 - Unit trust fund fees  15 637 176  15 552 976  -  - 
- Segregated fund management fees  54 762 233  58 733 420  54 762 233  58 733 420 
- Segregated fund performance fees  29 322 310  9 044 424  29 322 310  9 044 424 

 99 721 719  83 330 820  84 084 543  67 777 844 

12. OTHER INCOME

Administration fees  -  -  180 000  180 000 
Gain/(loss) on financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss*  124 524  737 543  (328 370)  441 939 
Unit Trust fund distributions (dividends and interest)  97 738  147 323  23 649  49 209 
Trailer fees and other  995 266  785 981  990 380  607 613 

 1 217 528  1 670 847  865 659  1 278 761 

GROUP COMPANY

2020 2019 2020 2019
N$ N$ N$ N$

9. AMOUNT OWING TO GROUP COMPANIES

NAM Staff Share Scheme  381 532  961 095 

 381 532  961 095 

These loans are interest-free and classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. The loan has no fixed terms of repayment and thus classified as a current liability on the statement 
of financial position. Cash flows arising from movements in these loans are classified as financing activities in the statement of cash flows. There were no non-cash movements during the year 
ended 30 September 2020 (2019: Nil).
Refer to note 20 for details of relationships with these Group entities.

10. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Coronation Fund Managers Limited  44 803 706  17 281 685  41 808 833  13 941 787 
Accruals  2 227 503  3 736 575  752 184  1 829 279 
Bonus and leave provision  2 137 926  1 950 913  1 503 305  1 718 154 

 49 169 135  22 969 173  44 064 322  17 489 220 

The following amounts due to related parties are included 
 in trade payables:
E.Emvula (Director) - bonus and restraint of trade accruals  -    875 000  -    875 000 
U. Eiseb (Director) - bonus and restraint of trade accruals  570 929  340 000  570 929  340 000 
Directors’ annual retainer fee  202 474  -    202 474  -   

*Comparative amounts have been reclassified for improved disclosure purposes. The reclassification did not have any impact on the profit reported on the SOCI nor on the SOCIE.

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0

5 6   /   A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S



GROUP COMPANY
2020 2019 2020 2019

N$ N$ N$ N$

13. OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Operating expenditure includes the following:

13.1. EXPENSES

Auditors' remuneration     
Audit fees     

- current year  843 991  685 990  479 090  509 820 

Depreciation
Computer equipment  39 996  42 575  39 996  42 575 
Furniture and equipment  45 416  93 046  45 416  93 046 
Leasehold improvements  257 020  491 061  257 020  491 061 
Right-of-use asset  879 337  -    879 337  -   

 1 221 769  626 682  1 221 769  626 682 

Amortisation charge

Software  -    1 855  -    1 855 

Operating lease expense (IAS 17)
Equipment -  42 527 - 42 527
Office Premises  -    910 902  -   737 540

-  953 429 -  780 067 

Short term employee benefits

Salaries and wages  3 862 658  4 062 873  3 046 870  3 083 586 

Bonuses  1 865 139  1 723 497  1 295 309  1 513 217 
Contributions to retirement funds  323 314  349 395  261 798  272 739 
Share based payments charge (refer to 
note 13.3)  (638 829)  525 695  (638 829)  525 695 

Medical aid contributions  374 961  380 494  229 929  211 598 

 5 787 243  7 041 954  4 195 077  5 606 835 

Professional and consulting fees - Technical services  526 666  330 579  224 710  269 274 
Portfolio management fees - Coronation Fund Managers  61 681 148  43 414 738  54 703 158  36 418 817 
(refer to note 20.5)

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

13. OPERATING EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)  

13.2. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Non-executive directors
Paid by the Company In the capacity as:

 Meetings held:
Director

Audit 
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Total
2020

Total
2019

G Young  100 548  -    22 544  123 092  106 495 

B Rossouw  100 548  40 108  -    140 656  133 960 

S Walters  100 548  53 016  -    153 564  146 252 

E Angula  80 494  -    -    80 494  95 760 

T Shaanika  100 548  -    -    100 548  95 760 

 482 686  93 124  22 544  598 354  578 227 

Executive directors 
Paid by the Company

Basic
Salary

Bonuses Provident fund
Contributions

Social Security
Contribution and

Medical Aid

Deferred 
Remuneration

Total

2020

E Emvula (resigned - 31 July 2020)  736 052  -    55 078  32 716  375 629  1 199 475 
U Eiseb  766 594  570 929  57 495  44 712  268 700  1 708 430 

2019
E Emvula (resigned - 31 July 2020)  873 142  875 000  65 486  972  310 379  2 124 979 

U Eiseb  734 236  340 000  55 068  38 096  220 334  1 387 734 

The executive directors held the following share options and unvested deferred remuneration as at 30 September 2020

13.3. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
13.3.1 NAM STAFF SHARE SCHEME
The Company’s Share Purchase Scheme has been in existence since 1998 as part of the restructuring process of the Group and over the years, the scheme purchased 13 120 000 Namibia 
Asset Management Ltd shares for staff incentive purposes. Up to the beginning of the 2007 financial year no options were allocated to staff. In terms of IFRS 2 (Share based payments), 
the option scheme is equity settled as the employee is entitled to purchase ordinary shares of the Company once the vesting conditions have been satisfied. 

No of share options Unvested deferred remuneration (N$)
2020 2019 2020 2019

E Emvula (resigned - 31 July 2020) - 1 250 000 -  717 515  
U Eiseb 1 015 000 1 015 000  558 776  512 511 

  Refer to note 13.3 and note 20.5 for additional disclosure on share-based payments and other executive remuneration.

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0

5 8   /   A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S



No of share options Unvested deferred remuneration (N$)
2020 2019 2020 2019

E Emvula (resigned - 31 July 2020) - 1 250 000 -  717 515  
U Eiseb 1 015 000 1 015 000  558 776  512 511 

  Refer to note 13.3 and note 20.5 for additional disclosure on share-based payments and other executive remuneration.

VESTING CONDITIONS
Provided the employee is still in the employ of the Company at the specified date, the options vest in the following tranches:

 - On or after the second anniversary but before the third anniversary of the grant date: 25%

 - On or after the third anniversary but before the fourth anniversary of the grant date: 50%

 - On or after the fourth anniversary but before the fifth anniversary of the grant date: 75%

 - Lastly on or between the fifth and the tenth anniversaries of the grant date: All the remaining options

Number of options
2020

Number of options
2019

Outstanding on 1 October 3 467 500  3 620 000 
Granted during the period  -  150 000 
Forfeited during the period -  (302 500)

Exercised during the period (1 250 000)    -   

Outstanding on 30 September    2 217 500  3 467 500 

Exercisable on 30 September  1 740 000  2 802 500 

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

The share price of Namibia Asset Management Limited shares at 30 September 2020 was 62 cents per share (2019: 55 cents per share).

Independent advisors, University of Cape Town’s Accounting Department, were contracted to calculate the fair value of the share options. The fair value was calculated based on 
the following:
 - Listed share price at grant date:  The applicable share price on the date of the grant was used, adjusted for any anomalies.
- Exercise price: Refer to the exercise prices indicated above
- Expected volatility: The expected option lifetime of all tranches was considered and volatility was calculated using the weekly closing share price.
- Option life: The expected option life was calculated using the tranches stipulated in the trust deed and rounded off to the nearest year.
- Expected dividend yield: 5.5% under first and second grants, 8% under third grant, and 15% for the 4th, 5th, 6th and 7th grants.
- Risk-free interest rate: The yield on a Namibian government bond with a term of maturity equal to the appropriate expected lifetime of the option was used
- Assumptions for early exercise:  The assumption for exercise behaviours was based on internal investigations and data provided by University of Cape Town’s 

Accounting Department.

Options Issued
Date Issued No of Options Strike price Remaining contractual term

30-Jan-07  7 650 000 4.5 cents Fully vested
01-Nov-07  2 000 000 4.5 cents Fully vested
02-May-11  6 105 000 22.5 cents Fully vested
01-Jan-14  1 015 000 27 cents Fully vested
01-Oct-14  100 000 58.5 cents Fully vested
01-Oct-15  250 000 64.8 cents 1 year
01-Oct-16  250 000 67.5 cents 2 years
01-Oct-17  302 500 64.8 cents Forfeited
01-Oct-18  150 000 57.6 cents 4 years

The Binomial Model was used and the options on the 1st and 2nd grant were valued 
at between N$ 0.16 and N$ 0.19 per option. The 3rd grant was valued at N$ 0.061 
per option at year-end and the 4th, 5th, 6th, 7th and 8th grant was valued at 89.98 
cents per share.

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

13. OPERATING EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)
13.3 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
13.3.2 THE ORBAN STREET TRUST

On 01 April 2016 the Orban Street Trust, the vehicle used to incentive NAM employees has reached an agreement with Coronation Investment Management SA (Pty) Ltd (CIM SA) 
to acquire sixteen million of its shares in NAM for N$8 400 000. These shares were acquired at a discount of 25% to the ruling market price at the time of the commencement of 
the deal discussions and these shares once acquired has been allocated as follows:
1) E Emvula*     5 600 000; and
2) U Eiseb           5 200 000.

*Forfeited the allotted shares during the current year as a result of his resignation.

The remaining allocation will vests once the following conditions are met:
1) At least 5 years has passed since the effective date;
2) The beneficiary is still an employee of NAM; and
3) All the loan amount and the related interest has been repaid.

These allocations are deemed to fall within the ambit of IFRS 2 as NAM receive the services from the beneficiaries in return for the shares. As a result hereof NAM, approached 
an independent valuator (University of Cape Town’s Accounting) to determine the fair value of the transaction. The following were the key considerations taken into account to 
determine the fair value of the transaction:

 - Nature of transaction:  Based on the terms of the transaction it was deemed that this is a forward sale instead of an option
 - Exercise price: The transaction price was fixed at 52.5 cents per share on the effective date
 - Term: A minimum period of 5 years since effective date
 - Discount: 25% on a market price of 70 cents.
 - Dividend yield: 14% on the discounted price, 10% on the market price
 - Risk-free interest rate: 8% compounded semi-annually

Using the aforementioned assumptions the fair value of the transaction was determined to be 18.89 cents per share as at the effective date. 
The total share based transaction recorded in respect of the above mentioned schemes are as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

2020 2019 2020 2019
N$ N$ N$ N$

Equity-settled share option transactions
Expense recognised in profit or loss  (638 829)  525 695  (638 829)  525 695 

Charge to equity  (638 829)  525 695  (638 829)  525 695 

Share based payments reserve

Opening balance  3 788 704  3 263 009  3 788 704  3 263 009 
Charge to equity  (638 829)  525 695  (638 829)  525 695 

Closing balance  3 149 875  3 788 704  3 149 875  3 788 704 

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0

6 0   /   A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S



13.4. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES GROUP COMPANY

2020 2019 2020 2019
N$ N$ N$ N$

Opening balance  4 639 705  6 030 788  -    -   
-Interest 182 111  382 793  -    -   
-Interest adjustment  -  5 142  -    -   
-Repayments  (2 436 871)  (1 779 018 )  -    -   

Closing balance  2 384 945  4 639 705  -    -   

The interest bearing liabilities pertain to the acquisition of shares from CIM by OST (refer to 13.3.2). The loan is repayable with any dividends that accrue on the 16 000 000 million shares 
acquired as well as 30% of the dividends that accrues on the pre-existing 26 000 800 shares. The repayment is first be applied to any accrued interest and thereafter to the capital balance. The 
loan attracts interest at the prime  rate of Nedbank South Africa less 200 basis points. The 16 000 000 million shares are held as security against the loan amount until the loan and attributable 
interest is fully settled.

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

GROUP COMPANY

2020 2019* 2020 2019*
N$ N$ N$ N$

14. FINANCE INCOME

Interest on call and current accounts#  992 038  1 344 769  334 093  435 162 
Interest on unit trust investments  569 119  828 612  569 119  828 612 

 1 561 157 2 173 381  903 212  1 263 774

*Comparative amounts have been reclassified for improved disclosure purposes. The reclassification did not have any impact on the profit reported on the SOCI nor on the SOCIE. Gains or losses at   
FVPTL was reclassified to other income (refer to note 12). Dividend income has also been presented as a separate line item on the SOCI.
#Calculated using the effective interest rate method.

15.  FINANCE COST

Interest accrued on lease liability (refer to note 1.2)  (334 465)  -    (334 465)  -   
Interest accrued on interest bearing liabilities (refer to 
note 13.4)

 (182 111)  (382 793)  -  -   

 (516 576)  (382 793)  (334 465)  -   

16.  INCOME TAX

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Namibian normal tax  7 189 445  7 346 527  5 348 909  5 566 176 
Current year  7 189 445  7 346 527  5 348 909  5 566 176 

Deferred tax  714 461  154 903  817 013  41 907 
Current year  714 461  154 903  817 013  41 907 

 7 903 906  7 501 430  6 165 922  5 608 083 
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share is based on basic earnings of:  15 227 665  16 576 680  15 409 770  16 605 741 

Headline earnings per share are based on headline 
earnings of:  15 227 665  16 576 680  15 409 770  16 605 741 

Reconciliation of earnings to headline earnings

Profit for the year  15 227 665  16 576 680  15 409 770  16 605 741 

Headline earnings  15 227 665  16 576 680  15 409 770  16 605 741 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Ordinary shares in issue  155 479 200  154 229 200  200 000 000  200 000 000 

Diluted ordinary shares in issue*  157 038 595  158 241 019  200 000 000  200 000 000 

Reconciliation of statutory shares in issue to diluted 
ordinary shares in issue

Statutory issued shares  200 000 000  200 000 000  200 000 000  200 000 000 
Effect of own shares held by Namibia Asset Management 
Executive Share Purchase Scheme

 (2 520 000)  (3 770 000)  -    - 

Effect of own shares held by Orban Street Trust  (42 000 800)  (42 000 800)  -    - 
Weighted average number of shares 155 479 200   154 229 200 200 000 000 200 000 000
Effect of share options outstanding  1 559 395  4 011 819  -    - 
Diluted ordinary shares in issue  157 038 595  158 241 019  200 000 000  200 000 000 

cents per share cents per share cents per share cents per share
 - Basic  9,79  10,75  7,70  8,30 
 - Headline  9,79  10,75  7,70  8,30 
 - Diluted  9,70  10,48  7,70  8,30 
*  Dilution of ordinary shares takes place if all employees exercise their options.

GROUP COMPANY

16. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 2020 2019 2020 2019

N$ N$ N$ N$
The Namibian corporate tax rate was 32% during the 
current financial year. 

Reconciliation of tax rate % % % %

Standard corporate tax rate  32,00 32,00  32,00 32,00
Adjusted for:
Disallowable expenditure  2,27  0,00  2,77  0,63 
Exempt income - dividend income  (0,11)  (0,85)  (6,19)  (7,38) 

Effective tax rate  34,16  31,15  28,58  25,25 
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

18. NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS GROUP COMPANY

18.1 CASH GENERATED BY OPERATIONS 2020 2019 2020 2019
N$ N$ N$ N$

Profit before tax  23 131 571  24 078 110  21 575 692  22 213 824 
Adjustments for :

Finance costs  516 576  382 793  334 465  - 
Finance income (1 561 157) (2 173 381)  (903 212)  (1 263 774) 
Dividend income - -  (4 200 000)  (4 200 000) 

Non-cash items
Depreciation  1 221 769  626 682  1 221 769  626 682 
Amortisation of intangibles  -  1 856  -    1 856 
Share based payments  (638 829)  525 695  (638 829)  525 695 
Gain on financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss  (124 524) (295 604)  -   - 

Operating profit before working capital changes 22 545 406  23 146 151  17 389 885  17 904 283 

Working capital changes 9 055 835  7 046 515  9 505 414  6 384 520 

Movement in trade and other receivables  (17 144 127)  286 221  (17 069 688) 327 244 
Movement in trade and other payables  26 199 962  6 760 294  26 575 102  6 057 276 

Cash generated by operations  31 601 241  30 192 666  26 895 299  24 288 803 
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GROUP COMPANY

2020 2019 2020 2019
18.  NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(CONTINUED)
N$ N$ N$ N$

18.2 INCOME TAXES PAID

Balance at beginning of the year  439 274  475 786  296 331  343 329 
Current tax charge  (7 189 446)  (7 346 528)  (5 348 909)  (5 566 176) 
Balance at end of year  (439 226)  (439 274)  (198 107)  (296 331) 

Income tax paid  (7 189 398)  (7 310 016)  (5 250 685)  (5 519 178) 

18.3 DIVIDENDS PAID

Shareholders for dividends - opening balance  (253 439)  (173 023)  (253 439)  (173 023) 
Shareholders for dividends - closing balance  340 151  253 439  340 151  253 439 
Dividends declared  (16 393 643)  (13 181 193)  (18 000 000)  (15 000 000) 

Dividends paid  (16 306 931)  (13 100 777)  (17 913 288)  (14 919 584) 

18.4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Favourable balances  36 013 462  31 488 849  30 749 473  24 153 247 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  36 013 462  31 488 849  30 749 473  24 153 247 

Analysed as follows:

Bank balances  23 467 833  7 906 431  20 566 316  6 099 926 
NAM Coronation Strategic Income Fund  10 183 157  18 053 321  10 183 157  18 053 321 
NAM Coronation Money Market Fund  2 362 472  5 529 097  -    -   

 36 013 462  31 488 849  30 749 473  24 153 247 

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of 
financial instruments:
• Credit risk
• Liquidity risk
• Market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure 
to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies 
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the 
Group’s management of capital . Further quantitative 
disclosures are included throughout these consolidated  
and separate financial statements.

Risk Management Framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the es-
tablishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management 
framework. The Board is responsible for developing and 
monitoring the Group’s risk management policies through the 
establishment of its Group Audit and Risk Committee.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify 
and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set ap propriate risk 
limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. 
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to 
reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. 
The Group, through its training and management standards 
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive 
control environment in which all employees understand their 
roles and obligations.

The Group Audit and Risk Committee oversees how management 

monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies 
and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. Management 
presents quarterly risk logs to the Audit and Risk committee and 
the Board, indicating financial losses incurred due to risk incidents 
and actions taken to prevent similar events in the future.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer 
or counter party to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s 
receivables from customers, investment securities and cash 
and cash equivalents.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s customer base consists of two main categories: 
segregated funds and unit trust funds. These two categories 
of clients have significantly different profiles of credit risk.

Segregated funds

77.8% of Namibia Asset Management Limited’s Group revenue 
(excluding performance fees) is generated by segregated funds 
(2019: 79.1%). These consist of pension funds, medical aid funds 
and insurance companies, all of whom are large institutional 
investors who are strictly regulated by NAMFISA. In all 
instances management fees are collected automatically from 
funds invested and virtually no credit risk exists.

In the case where clients are presented with a monthly or 
quarterly invoice which is paid by the client independently 
of funds under management, payment periods are strictly 
measured and delays in payment are immediately followed 
up at the highest level of management.

The majority of the Group’s revenue is attributable to 
investment mandates of single customers.

The majority of the Group’s segregated fund customers have 
been trans acting with the Group for over 5 years, and losses due 
to payment default by segregated clients have never occurred 
during this time.

Unit Trust funds

Unit trust fund  clients bear no credit  risk  as the fees  are 
automatically included in the daily valuation of the funds.

Investments

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing 
its funds in liquid securities with local banks of satisfactory 
credit status and its unit trust funds. Management does not 
expect any counter party to fail to meet its obligations.

Guarantees

The Group does not provide financial guarantees to any 
external parties.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to 
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s 
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, 
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities 
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s 
reputation.

The Group actively monitors its cash flow requirements on a daily 
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19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued) 

basis and thereby optimises its return on investments. Typically 
the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet 
expected operational expenses for the period of 30 days, including 
the servicing of financial obligations (if any); this excludes the 
potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably 
be predicted, such as natural disasters. The Group does not main-
tain any credit facilities, apart from normal 30 day creditor’s 
payment terms with general business suppliers. The loan held 
by the Orban Street Trust is only repayable from dividends paid 
on the underlying shares purchased and as a result do not have 
any liquidity impact on the day-to-day operations of the Group.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as 
foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will 
affect the Group’s income or the value of its holding of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

The Group does not trade in derivatives.

The Group does not have a significant exposure to market risk.

Currency risk

The Group does not have significant exposure to currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Except for the Orban Street Trust loan, the Group does not 
have any interest-bearing borrowings and therefore does not 
carry any interest-rate risk on liabilities. The exposure of the 
Orban Street Trust loan to interest rate risk does not have an 
impact on the day-to-day operations of the entity as the loan 
is repayable by a specific dividend income stream and any 

changes in the interest rate will only reduce or prolong the 
repayment period of the loan.

Interests bearing financial assets are monitored on a daily basis 
and active management takes place to ensure maximum rates.

Other market price risk

The Group does not directly hold any listed shares as investment 
vehicles. The Group is exposed to equity price risk, which arises 
from available for sale equity instruments as well as investments 
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Management 
monitors the exposure to these instruments by reference to the 
market indices.

The investments at fair value through profit or loss are treated 
as such because their performance is actively monitored and 
they are managed on a fair value basis.

Equity price risk is one of the Group’s main operating risks and the 
Board considers it to be managed adequately and with great care.

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain investor, creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. 
The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which 
the Group defines as total shareholders’ equity, and the level of 
dividends to ordinary shareholders on a regular basis.

Currently, the Group does not have any intensive capital 
requirements and therefore no external interest-bearing debt 
is considered. Dividends are paid out after cash flows have 
been rigorously tested and the Board is certain that all short 
and medium term commitments can be met.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital 
management during the year. The regulator imposes capital 
requirements on the unit trust funds under management as well 
as the Company and its subsidiary. Management is satisfied that 
the Group adheres to those requirements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
CREDIT RISK

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date was:

GROUP COMPANY

2020 2019 2020 2019
N$ N$ N$ N$

Trade and other receivables  29 257 556  12 033 086  27 526 171  10 206 707 

Amounts owing by Group companies  2 259 776  1 744 210 

Cash and cash equivalents  36 013 462  31 488 849  30 749 473  24 153 247 
 65 271 018  43 521 935  60 535 420  36 104 164 

The Group’s most significant customer, the Government Institutions Pension Fund, accounts for N$24,905,744 (2019: N$7 277 474) of the trade receivables carrying amount at 30 September 2020.

Impairment losses
The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date was:

It is the Group and Company’s policy, which is in line with the contracts with customers, to deduct the trade receivables from the assets managed by the Group, shortly after month and 
quarter-end. As at 30 September 2020 the Group managed sufficient assets on behalf of clients to enable it to deduct the full trade receivables post year-end. Trade and other receivables have 
not been discounted as the impact of discounting is considered to be insignificant. 

Cash and cash equivalents are only held with banking institutions which according to the Bank of Namibia are adequately capitalised, profitable and maintain liquidity levels well above its 
prudential requirements. Short-term investments are only permitted in the Group’s own unit trust funds which only invests in highly liquid securities and only with counter parties that have a 
high credit rating. 

For amounts owing by Group Companies, no allowance for expected credit losses have been applied as the directors believe that the counter parties have access to sufficient liquid resources at 
the reporting date.

On the basis of the above no ECL’s have been recognised in respect of these assets.

GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY

2020
N$

GROSS

2019
N$

GROSS

2020
N$

IMPAIRMENT

2019
N$

IMPAIRMENT

2020
N$

GROSS

2019
N$

GROSS

2020
N$

IMPAIRMENT

2019
N$

IMPAIRMENT

Not past due  28 832 317  11 247 856  -    -    27 251 040  9 606 221  -    -   
Past due 1 - 30 days  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Past due 31 - 120 days  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  28 832 317  11 247 856  -    -    27 251 040  9 606 221  -    -   
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GROUP
30 SEPTEMBER 2020

N$
Carrying amount 6 mths or less More than 12 mths 

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities  2 384 945  1 666 017  860 942 

Lease liability  3 734 101  1 039 923  3 395 843
Shareholders for dividends  340 151  340 151  -   

Trade and other payables  46 255 345  46 255 345  -   

 52 714 542  49 301 435  4 114 771 

GROUP
30 SEPTEMBER 2019

N$
Carrying amount 6 mths or less More than 12 mths 

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities  4 639 705  2 436 871  2 369 714 

Shareholders for dividends  253 439  253 439  -   
Trade and other payables  20 911 035  20 911 035  -   

 25 804 179  21 164 474  2 369 714 

COMPANY
30 SEPTEMBER 2020

N$
Carrying amount 6 mths or less More than 12 mths 

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Lease liability  3 734 101  1 039 923  3 395 843 

Shareholders for dividends  340 151  340 151  -   
Amounts owed by Group companies  381 532  381 532  -   

Trade and other payables  15 976 003  15 976 003  -   

 20 431 787 17 737 609  3 395 843

COMPANY
30 SEPTEMBER 2019

N$
Carrying amount 6 mths or less More than 12 mths 

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Shareholders for dividends  253 439  253 439  -   

Amounts owed by Group companies  961 095  961 095  -   
Trade and other payables  15 976 003  15 976 003  -   

 17 190 537  17 190 537  -   

NOTES TO THE  
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19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
LIQUIDITY RISK

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements. The table below shows undiscounted 
contractual cash flows.:
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Profit or loss Equity
100bp 100bp 100bp 100bp

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Group: 30 September 2020
Variable rate instruments  361 956  (361 956)  238 891  (238 891)

Group: 30 September 2019
Variable rate instruments  314 888  (314 888)  207 826  (207 826)

Company: 30 September 2020
Variable rate instruments  307 495  (307 495)  202 947  (202 947)

Company: 30 September 2019
Variable rate instruments  241 532  (241 532)  159 411  (159 411)

19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

INTEREST RATE RISK
A change of 100 basis points (bp) in interest rates at reporting date would have increased/ (decreased) equity and profit and loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all 

other variables remain constant. This analysis is performed on the same basis for 2019.

FAIR VALUES

Basis for determining fair values
The following summarises the significant methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments reflected on the face of the statement of financial position.
Trade and other receivables or payables
For receivables or payables with a remaining life of less than one year, the carrying value is deemed to reflect the fair value. All other receivables or payables are discounted to determine fair value. 
Statutory investments
For statutory investments in the unit trusts, fair values are determined at the ruling unit price as at year end.  Refer to note 4.
Other investments
Short term investments consist of unit trust investments. The fair value of these investments is based on the actual unit price at year end.
Cash and cash equivalents
Considering cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid assets of short-term nature, the fair value of cash and cash equivalents is considered to be the values as shown on the relevant bank 
statements and other supporting documentation.
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

30 September 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at FVOCI  6 000 000  -    -    6 000 000 
Financial assets at FVTPL  9 038 884  -    -    9 038 884 

 15 038 884  -    -    15 038 884 

30 September 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at FVOCI  5 000 000  -    -    5 000 000 
Financial assets at FVTPL  7 698 819  -    -    7 698 819 

 12 698 819  -    -    12 698 819 

19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:
 - Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
 - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)
 - Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

During the financial year ended 30 September 2020 there were no transfers of financial assets between the levels. 
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19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following tables analyse the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities in accordance with the categories of financial instruments in IFRS 9.

GROUP
30 September 2020
N$

FVTPL
N$

FVOCI
N$

Amortised cost
N$

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost 

N$

Non Financial
assets/liabilities 

N$
Total

N$

ASSETS

Equipment  -    -    -    -    1 170 080  1 170 080 

Right-of-use asset  -    -    -    -    3 517 349  3 517 349 

Marketable securities  9 038 884  6 000 000  -    -    -    15 038 884 

Deferred tax  -    -    -    -    1 446 327  1 446 327 

Trade and other receivables  -    -    29 257 556  -    165 549  29 423 105 

Current tax asset  -    -    -    -    439 226  439 226 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    36 013 462  -    -    36 013 462 

Total assets  9 038 884  6 000 000  65 271 018  -    6 738 530  87 048 433 

LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities  -  -  -  -  3 734 101  3 734 101 

Interest bearing liabilities  -    -    2 384 945  -    -    2 384 945 

Shareholders for dividends  -    -    340 151  -    -    340 151 

Trade and other payables  -    -    46 255 345  -    2 182 895  48 438 240 

Total liabilities  -    -    48 980 441  -    6 647 891  55 628 332 

Equity  31 420 102 

Total equity and liabilities  87 048 434 
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19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The following tables analyse the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities in accordance with the categories of financial instruments in IFRS 9.

GROUP
30 September 2019
N$

FVTPL
N$

FVOCI
N$

Amortised 
cost

N$

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost 

N$

Non Financial
assets/liabilities 

N$
Total

N$

ASSETS

Equipment  -    -    -    1 366 379  1 366 379 

Marketable securities  7 698 819  5 000 000  -    -    -    12 698 819 

Deferred tax  -    -    -    -    2 160 790  2 160 790 

Trade and other receivables  -    -    12 072 115  -    414 325  12 486 440 

Current asset  -    -    -    -    439 274  439 274 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    31 488 849  -    -    31 488 849 

Total assets  7 698 819  5 000 000  43 560 964  -    4 380 768  60 640 551 

LIABILITIES

Interest bearing liabilities  -    -    4 639 705  -    -    4 639 705 

Shareholders for dividends  -    -    253 439  -    -    253 439 

Trade and other payables  -    -    20 911 035  -    2 058 138  22 969 173 

Total liabilities  -    -    25 804 179  -    2 058 138  27 862 317 

Equity  32 778 234 

Total equity and liabilities  60 640 551 

There were no reclassifications during the year.
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19.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The following tables analyse the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities in accordance with the categories of financial instruments in IFRS 9.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

COMPANY
30 September 2020
N$

FVTPL
N$

FVOCI
N$

Amortised 
cost

N$

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost 

N$

Non Financial
assets/liabilities 

N$
Total

N$

ASSETS

Equipment  -    -    -    -    1 170 080  1 170 080 

Right-of-use asset  -    -    -    -    3 517 349  3 517 349 

Investment in subsidiary  -    -    -    -    6 000 000  6 000 000 

Deferred tax  -    -    -    -    1 121 862  1 121 862 

Trade and other receivables  -    -    27 526 171  -    148 524  27 674 695 

Amounts owing by Group companies  -    -    2 259 776  -    -    2 259 776 

Current tax asset  -    -    -    -    198 107  198 107 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    30 749 473  -    -    30 749 473 

Total assets  -    -    60 535 420  -    12 155 922  72 691 342 

LIABILITIES

Lease liability  -    -    -    3 734 101  3 734 101 

Shareholde rs for dividends  -    -    340 151  -    -    340 151 

Trade and other payables  -    -    41 799 013  -    1 534 414  43 333 427 

Amounts owing to Group companies  -    -    381 532  -    -    381 532 

Total liabilities  -    -    42 520 696  -    5 999 410  48 520 106 

Total equity and liabilities  24 171 236 

 72 691 342 
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COMPANY
30 September 2019
N$

FVTPL
N$

FVOCI
N$

Amortised 
cost

N$

Financial liabilities
at amortised costs 

N$

Non Financial
assets/liabilities 

N$
Total

N$

ASSETS

Equipment  -    -    -    -    1 366 379  1 366 379 

Intangible assets  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Interest in subsidiary  -    -    -    -    6 000 000  6 000 000 

Deferred tax  -    -    -    -    1 938 875  1 938 875 

Trade and other receivables  -    -    10 605 007  -    -    10 605 007 

Amounts owing by Group companies  -    -    1 744 210  -    -    1 744 210 

Current tax asset  -    -    -    -    296 331  296 331 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    24 153 247  -    -    24 153 247 

Total assets  -    -    36 502 464  -    9 601 585  46 104 049 

LIABILITIES

Shareholders for dividends  -    -    253 439 -  -    253 439 

Trade and other payables  -    -    15 976 003 -  1 513 217  17 489 220 

Amounts owing to Group companies  -    -    961 095 -  -    961 095 

Total liabilities  -    -    17 190 537  -    1 513 217  18 703 754 

Equity  27 400 295 

Total equity and liabilities  46 104 049 

There were no reclassifications during the year.

19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The following tables analyse the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities in accordance with the categories of financial instruments in IFRS 9.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Country of
incorporation

Ownership interest 
2020 2019

% %

Namibia Unit Trust Managers Ltd Namibia 100.00 100.00

The subsidiary has 6 000 000 issued shares (2019: 6 000 000)

Through directing of all the decision making by the Company Board of directors and receiving 
all the benefits, the Group also exercises control over the following entities:

The NAM Staff Share Scheme Namibia - -
The Orban Street Trust Namibia - -

20. RELATED PARTIES
20.1 IDENTITY OF RELATED PARTIES
Related party relationships exist between the Company, its subsidiary (see note 4), shareholders, directors and other entities controlled by the Group. Additionally, Coronation Fund Managers 

Ltd (CFM), through one of its subsidiaries, CIM SA holds 40.05% (2019: 40.05%) of the Company’s issued share capital. Transactions and outstanding balances are reflected in note 3, note 9 and 

note 20.5.

20.2 GROUP ENTITIES
Details of investments in subsidiaries are disclosed in note 3.
Subsidiary is:

20.3 SHAREHOLDERS
The outstanding balances due to shareholders in respect of dividends are shown on the face of the statement of financial position. The analysis of shareholders is provided on page 10. 

20.4 DIRECTORS
The names and details of directors are disclosed on page 36 of this document. Loans to/from directors as at 30 September 2020 amounted to Nil (2019: Nil).

20.5 TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Details relating to directors’ emoluments and shareholdings in the company are disclosed in note 13.2 and 13.3 and the analysis of shareholders on page 10. The Group does provide other non-
cash benefits to directors and executive officers in addition to their salaries in the form of share options. Key management personnel in the Group consist of E Emvula* (Chief Executive Officer), U 
Eiseb (Chief Financial Officer) and N Kwedhi** (Retail Business).

The key management personnel compensations for these members are as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2020 2019 2020 2019

N$ N$ N$ N$

    Short-term employee benefits  2 644 076  5 519 440  2 269 076  4 485 208 

Distributions to beneficiaries (Orban Street Trust)  1 365 042  1 027 878  1 365 042  1 027 878 

The above amounts are included in ‘short term employee benefits’ in note 13.1.

*E Emvula resigned 31 July 2020
** N Kwedhi was only appointed on 4 January 2020
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20. RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

Coronation Fund Managers Limited
By virtue of an arms-length and market-related agreement, CFM provide asset management services to the Group. In addition, staff may be located at the Coronation office in Cape Town from 
time to time to carry out their duties. The Group pays for normal office costs relating to such staff activities to Coronation on a monthly and quarterly basis. 

Group investments in unit trusts
Group companies that invest excess cash in the Unit Trust Funds managed by Namibia Unit Trust Managers Ltd, pay a reduced service fee on these investments.

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020 GROUP COMPANY

2020 2019 2020 2019
N$ N$ N$ N$

Investment management fees  61 681 148  43 414 738  54 703 158  36 418 817 
Reporting costs  531 908  654 157  531 908  654 157 

 62 213 056  44 068 895  55 235 066  37 072 974 

Operating lease commitments are payable as follows:

2020 2019 2020 2019
N$ N$ N$ N$

Less than one year  -    507 003  -    380 252 
Between one and five years  -    970 356  -    727 768 

 -    1 477 359  -    1 108 020 

The lease does not include any contingent rentals. The contract has an escalation clause of 9% per annum. There is no option to purchase attached to the contract and the group has the first 
option of renewing the lease agreement.

21. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

23.  STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 30 September 2020 and have not been applied in preparing the Company’s 
financial statements.

Management has performed an assessment of these standards and interpretations and concluded that they will not have any material impact on financial statements of the Group.

22. NEW AND AMENDED IFRS AND IFRIC INTERPRETATIONS ADOPTED
None of the new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations that were adopted had a material effect on the financial performance and position of the Group and Company.

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0
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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE  
23RD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Notice is hereby given that the twenty-third Annual General 
Mee ting of Namibia Asset Management Limited will be held 
at the Company’s offices at 1st Floor, Millenium House, Cnr of 
Robert Mugabe Avenue and DR AB May Street, Windhoek, on 
26 February 2021 for the following purpose:

AGENDA
PRESENTATION OF THE AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited annual financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended 30 September 2020, together with the reports 
by the directors, the external auditors and the audit and risk 
committee have been approved by the Board of directors of the 
Company (“the Board”) on 14 December 2020, and are available 
on the Company’s website www.namasset.com.na.
 
ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 1

To approve the Company’s remuneration to non-executive 
directors for their services as directors in respect of the 2020 
financial year (per meeting)

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 2
To appoint, as recommended by the Audit and Risk Commit-
tee, EY Namibia as the Company’s registered auditors and 
to authorize directors to determine the remuneration of the 
auditors.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 3
a. To re-elect, by way of a separate vote, Mrs Birgit Rossouw, 

who retires by rotation in accordance with the provisions 
of the Company’s Articles of Association, but is eligible 
and available for re- election.

b. To re-elect, by way of a separate vote, Mrs Aimee Rhoda 
who retires by rotation in accordance with the provisions 
of the Company’s Articles of Association, but is eligible 
and available for re-election.

c. To re-elect, by way of a separate vote, Mr. Anton Pillay who 
retires by rotation in accordance with the provisions of 
the Company’s Articles of Association, but is eligible and 
available for re-election.

A profile in respect of each director is set out on page 21 to 22. 
The re-election of the directors of the Board will be conducted 
by way of a separate vote in respect of each individual.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 4
To elect the Audit and Risk Committee members as recom-
mended by the NAMCODE. The following individuals are 
re commended for election to the Audit and Risk Committee:
a. Mr Schalk Walters (Chairman)
b. Mrs Birgit Rossouw
c. Mrs Aimee Rhoda

A profile in respect of each member recommended for election 
to the Audit and Risk Committee is contained on page 21 to 22.

PROPOSED FEE
2021 FY

N$

PRIOR YEAR
2020 FY

N$
NAM Board
- Chairman* 16 382 15 907
- Member 10 328 10 027

Audit and Risk Committee
- Chairman 13 651 13 254
- Member 10 328 10  027

Remuneration and Nominations
- Chairman 11 610 11 272
- Member 10 328 10 027

Annual retainer fee 62 250 60 440

*the incumbent Chairman does not receive any remuneration due to his role at Coronation.
I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0

“ A relentless commitment to 

the long term is the defining 

characteristic of the Group.”
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ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 5

NON-BINDING ADVISORY VOTE
Non-binding advisory vote to endorse the Company’s 
remuneration policy. The remuneration policy is contained on page 
25.

TO TRANSACT ANY OTHER BUSINESS

To transact such other business as may be transacted at an annual 
general meeting or raised by shareholders with or with out advance 
notice to the Company.

VOTING

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may ap point 
one or more proxies to attend, speak and, on a poll, vote in their 
stead. A proxy need not be a member of the company.

For the convenience of members who are unable to attend the 
meeting but wish to be represented thereat, the enclosed proxy 
form is provided. Such members should kindly complete and 
return the form to the Transfer Secretaries.
 
Transfer Secretaries (Pty) Ltd 
Robert Mugabe Avenue No. 4 Windhoek
or post it to PO Box 2401, Windhoek, Namibia

To be effective, the completed proxy form must reach the Trans-
fer Secretaries in Windhoek at least 48 hours before the time 
appointed for the meeting.

NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE  
23RD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

DIRECTORATE AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

A Pillay (2) (A)
R Young (2) (A)
S Walters (1) (B)
E Angula (1)
T Shaanika (1) 
B Rossouw  (1) (B)
A Rhoda (2) (B)
U Eiseb (1)

Namibian 1
South African 2
Remuneration and Nominations committee A 
Audit and Risk committee B

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young Namibia
Registered Accountants and Auditors
Cnr Otto Nitzsche and Maritz Street
P.O Box 1857 Windhoek, Namibia

TRANSFER SECRETARY

Transfer Secretaries (Pty) Ltd 
Namibian Stock Exchange 
Robert Mugabe Avenue No. 4 Windhoek
P O Box 2401
Windhoek

Telephone + 264 61 227 647
Telefax + 264 61 248 531

COMPANY SECRETARY & REGISTERED OFFICE

U Eiseb

1st Floor, Millennium  House, Corner of Robert Mugabe Avenue 
and DR AB May Street, Windhoek
P O Box 23329
Windhoek
Telephone + 264 61 275 700
Telefax + 264 61 249 444

Incorporated on 6 November 1997 Registration No 97/397

DIRECTORS, AUDITORS & SECRETARIES

DIRECTORS
AUDITORS AND 
SECRETARIES
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PROXY FORM I/ We     (Name/s in block letters) 

being the registered holders of     shares in Namibia Asset Management Limited,

do hereby appoint     of     

or failing him/her     of    

or failing him THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING

as my/our Proxy to attend, speak and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of Namibia Asset Management Ltd to be held on 26 February 2021 at 11:30 
at the company’s offices at 1st Floor, Millennium House, Corner of Robert Mugabe Avenue and DR AB May Street, Windhoek, and at any adjournment thereof and to vote for/against 
the resolutions or to abstain from voting in respect of the shares registered in my/our name/s, in accordance with the following instruction:

I / We desire to vote as follows In favour Against Abstain

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

1. To approve the Company’s remuneration to non-executive directors for their services as directors in respect of the 2021 financial year (per meeting).

2. To appoint, as recommended by the Audit and Risk Committee, EY Namibia as the Company’s registered auditors and to authorize directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors.

3a. To re-elect, by way of a separate vote, Mrs Birgit Rossouw, who retires by rotation in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, but is eligible and available for re- election.

3b. To re-elect, by way of a separate vote, Mrs Aimee Rhoda who retires by rotation in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, but is eligible and available for re-election.

3c. To re-elect, by way of a separate vote, Mr. Anton Pillay who retires by rotation in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, but is eligible and available for re-election.

4. To elect the Audit and Risk Committee members as recom mended by the NAMCODE. The following individuals are re commended for election to the Audit and Risk Committee:
a. Mr Schalk Walters (Chairman)
b. Mrs Birgit Rossouw
c. Mrs Aimee Rhoda

5. NON-BINDING ADVISORY VOTE
Non-binding advisory vote to endorse the Company’s remuneration policy. The remuneration policy is contained on page 25.

  

Signed at     on this   day of     2020/2021

Full Name       (In block letters) 

Signature/s      

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak, and on a poll, vote in his/her/their stead. 
Such a Proxy need not be a member of the company.
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